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NOTICE OF INTENT TO SUBMIT A CLAIM TO ARBITRATION

UNDER NAFTA CHAPTER 11

October 8, 2008



In accordance with Articles 1118 and 1119 of the North American Free Trade
Agreement (the “NAFTA”), and with a view toward resolving this dispute amicably
through consultation and negotiation, disputing investors “the Shiell Family;” Janet
Marie Broussard Shiell, William Shiell IV and William Shiell V, as investors and sole
shareholders of Brokerwood Products International (US), Inc.; Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc.; Kitchens International, Inc.; Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry,
Inc.; Broussard Shiell Holdings, Inc. and Fleur de Lys Trading Company, Inc.,
respectfully provide the government of Canada with this written notice of its intention to

submit a claim for arbitration under Chapter Eleven of NAFTA.

INTRODUCTION

The attached synopsis of parties and events that led to the loss of the Shiell

family’s substantial monetary investments in Canada, due to blatant bias,

discrimination and the failure of agencies of the Canadian government to accord the
Shiell family and their U.S. companies, as investors, the minimum standards of treatment

in Canada, is herein made a part of this notice of intent.

L TYPE OF CLAIM

This claim is submitted by the Shiell family (William Shiell [V, William Shiell V and



Janet Marie Broussard Shiell) as investors in Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc., and investors in their U.S. corporations named below, which corporations

also invested in Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.

II. DISPUTING INVESTORS

William SHIELL IV,
William SHIELL V,

Janet Marie Broussard SHIELL
and their companies:

Brokerwood Products International (US), Inc.,
Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.,
Kitchens International, Inc.,

Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc.,
Broussard Shiell Holdings, Inc., and

Fleur de Lys Trading Company, Inc.,

The Shiell family are U.S. born citizens with dual citizenship in Canada and residences
and businesses in both countries. Their U.S. address is 3705 Rue Chardonnay, Metairie,
Louisiana 70002. Their phone number is 504-717-8665 and fax number is 504-887-

1940. E-mail address is bubbashiell(@kitchens-international.com.




III. CLAIM BY AN INVESTOR OF A PARTY ON BEHALF OF AN
ENTERPRISE

The following information is provided regarding the corporations:

Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. (in bankruptcy)

Canadian Chartered Corporation that was located in Montreal, Quebec, Canada

Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc.
Louisiana Chartered Corporation
1937 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Suite 411
Metairie, Louisiana 70002, United States of America

Telephone 504-455-5425 Fax 504-887-1940

Kitchens International, Inc.
Louisiana Chartered Corporation
1937 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Suite 411
Metairie, Louisiana 70002, United States of America

Telephone 504-455-5425 Fax 504-887-1940

Fleur de Lys Trading Company, Inc.
Louisiana Chartered Corporation
1937 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Suite 411
Metairie, Louisiana 70002, United States of America

Telephone 504-455-5425 Fax 504-887-1940



Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc.
Massachusetts Chartered Corporation
1937 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Suite 411
Metairie, Louisiana 70002, United States of America

Telephone 504-455-5425 Fax 504-887-1940

Broussard-Shiell Holdings, Inc.
Canadian Chartered Corporation
5455 de Gaspe, Suite 600
Montreal, Quebec H2T 3B3, Canada

Telephone: 514-273-3931 Fax: 514-273-9644

IV. INVESTMENT

The Shiell family owns all of the stock in the above corporations and are investors in all
of them. The U.S. corporations named above also made investments in and loans to the
Canadian corporations named above per the attached listing of losses made a part herein.
These investments were lost when the operating company, Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. was fraudulently forced into bankruptcy by the Bank of

Montreal.



V. LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE AND SERVICE OF DOCUMENTS

Gail A. Snakenberg, Attorney at Law
Panzeca and Snakenberg, LL.C
Heritage Plaza Building
111 Veterans Memorial Boulevard, Suite 1506
Metairie, Louisiana 70005
United States of America

Telephone: 504-832-1000 Fax: 504-832-8995

VI. PROVISIONS ALLEGED TO HAVE BEEN BREACHED AND OTHER
APPLICABLE PROVISIONS

Articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1109 and 1110 were breached when a fraudulent

bankruptcy was forced through the appointment of a hostile inspector, who was a

representative of the Bank of Montreal. This sole inspector had filed a false claim at

the first meeting held to make a proposal to the creditors and the first meeting of the

creditors. Although the Shiell family and their U.S. companies, as investors and

the major creditors, contested this claim and the appointment of this hostile inspector, the

agencies of the Canadian government responsible for investigating such complaints did

nothing. The Shiell family and their U.S. companies have further been grossly

discriminated against and irreparably harmed in the Canadian courts, per the complaints

detailed in the synopsis attached and made a part hereof.



VII. ISSUES AND FACTUAL BASIS FOR THE CLAIM

The Shiell family and their U.S. and Canadian companies have lost all of the investments
made as a result of the forced bankruptcy achieved through conspiracy by the Bank of
Montreal, the syndic/ trustee, Litwin, Boyadjian, and their lawyer, Lewis Cytrynbaum,

acting in concert with Cuisine Crotone, Inc. and their lawyers, Sternthal, Katznelson.

These conspirators forced the bankruptcy of Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc. for the sole purpose of terminating a legally binding and exclusive U.S.
sales agency contract between Cuisine Crotone, Inc. and Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc., which was the basis for a U.S. sub-contract agency
agreement between Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. and Brokerwood
Products International (U.S.), Inc., and to allow Cuisine Crotone, Inc. to expropriate
millions of dollars owed to the Shiells and their companies under these contracts by
payment of a “settlement” fee of only one hundred thousand dollars ($ 100,000.00) to the
trustee to settle “in full” a crossclaim in the Cuisine Crotone vs. Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. suit for unpaid commissions, unpaid overages, and unfair

trade practices that had been amended to more than ten million dollars.

Cuisine Crotone, Inc. was selling directly to the customers and sub-agents of
Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. and Brokerwood Products

International (U.S.), Inc., and breached their exclusive contract by failing to pay



commissions and selling direct in the U.S. Cuisine Crotone, Inc. had further knowingly
manufactured and sold sub-standard cabinetry, inferior to HUD government “minimum”
specifications, or per the prototypes and samples furnished to Crotone by the Shiells,

as HUD “certified” severe use cabinetry to the U.S. government for military bases and

housing authorities.

The expansion of Cuisine Crotone, Inc., in order to produce the volume of cabinetry
required under the U.S. agency agreement with Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc. and sub-contract agency agreement with Brokerwood Products
International (U.S.), Inc., was funded by agencies of the Canadian and Provincial
Governments of Canada, who also funded this companies expenses for U.S. trade shows

and literature and brochures to be sent to U.S. export customers.

The Canadian government thus had a vested interest in Cuisine Crotone, Inc. who was
defrauding the U.S. government and the Shiells, as the U.S. investors who had

funded Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. on the basis of the exclusive
U.S. sales agency contract signed with Cuisine Crotone, Inc. Now with the contested
settlement forced through by the conspirators, both Brokerwood Products International
(U.S)), Inc. and Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc., as well as their

investors, have been defrauded.

The “settlement” funds were then expropriated by the trustee to pay his legal defense

costs against the contestation of all the rejected creditors, in direct opposition to



Canadian bankruptcy law. (The trustee pointed out to the Shiell family, in a letter, that
bankruptcy law required the Bank of Montreal to pay all of the trustee’s legal

defense costs as a creditor who had turned down all the other creditors claims. In
addition to illegally being paid fees from the estate, the trustee’s attorney, Cytrynbaum,
has forced the Shiell family’s U.S. companies to pay costs to him and is attempting to

seize their U.S. deposits in the Canadian court.)

The trustee and Office of the Superintendent of Bankruptcy Canada allowed the claims
of all the creditors to be rejected by the sole, illegally-appointed hostile inspector in the
forced bankruptcy. The majority of creditors in this bankruptcy were the Shiells and their
interrelated companies. At the first meeting of the creditors, they contested the
appointment of this hostile inspector, whom the trustee knew to be hostile to the Shiells
and their companies from a previous bankruptcy. The trustee and superintendent ignored

this contestation, which is in direct opposition to Canadian bankruptcy laws.

The Shiells and their companies have since been forced to deposit thirty-six thousand
(% 36,000.00) in court costs, in direct violation of NAFTA minimum treatment standards
in order to have their rejected bankruptcy claims finally reviewed by the Canadian court.

Although these deposits were made years ago, there is still no court date scheduled.

In their dispute with Cuisine Crotone, Inc., over payment per their exclusive U.S. agency
and sub-agency agreements, Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. and

Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. had filed complaints in the courts of



Louisiana and Canada respectively. In retaliation, Cuisine Crotone, Inc., filed a suit on
account, falsely claiming Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. had bought
products from Crotone and failed to pay for them. These invoices had already been offset
in the Louisiana lawsuit. This third suit filed in Canada by Crotone should have been
dismissed due to the pre-existing suits in Louisiana and Canada, as well as on

jurisdiction and forum non conveniens basis, as pleaded in court.

Instead, the perjured affidavits of Amodio Cerrelli of Cuisine Crotone, Inc., some filed in
the Canadian courts and others forwarded to the Louisiana courts by Crotone’s attorneys
(with full knowledge that they were false, as the affidavits in Canada and the affidavits in
Louisiana contradicted each other), were used to convince the Louisiana courts to

dismiss the lawsuit against Cuisine Crotone, Inc.

Although the Cerrelli affidavit, filed originally in the Canadian court, said the lawsuits in
Louisiana and Canada were “entirely different”, the atfidavits sent to the Louisiana court
claimed the Louisiana and Canadian lawsuits were “the same”, and the Canadian lawsuit
was more progressed than the Louisiana suit, when this was entirely false and

contradicted the affidavits on file in Canada.

The dismissal in Louisiana forced Brokerwood Products International, (U.S.), Inc. to
amend their counterclaim against Crotone in the Canadian suit to include damages in the
Louisiana lawsuit that were never a part of the Canadian suit. Had the suits been “the

same”, no amendment would have been necessary.



Now the Canadian counterclaim has also dismissed by the court, as Crotone’s attorneys,
Sternthal, Katznelson, in a motion, claim now that Brokerwood Products International
(U.S.), Inc. is a “FOREIGN” corporation with NO PRESENCE in Canada, and as such

would be required to put up court costs even in a counterclaim and defense.

This again is a direct contradiction of the perjured affidavit by Amodio Cerrelli, the
owner of Cuisine Crotone, Inc., originally filed in this lawsuit. This affidavit swore that
Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. had a presence in Canada and did
business in Montreal, and that Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. was the

same company as Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.

Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.’s lawsuit in Canada was settled by the
trustee against the wishes of all the true and rightful creditors except the Bank of
Montreal. All of these creditors’ claims were rejected in order to deny them any voice in
the bankruptcy which would have enabled them to stop the acceptance of a settlement

that would bring nothing to any of the creditors.

As Crotone had breached their contract and failed to pay Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc., they could not pay Brokerwood Products International
(U.S.), Inc., who now, because of this, did not have seventy-eight thousand dollars
($ 78,000.00) to deposit in “prepaid court costs” just to be allowed to continue their
crossclaim. No such deposit should have been required of U.S. investors under

NAFTA. Please refer to the synopsis for the complete complaint details.



VIII. RELIEF AND AMOUNT OF DAMAGES

The Shiell family and their corporations expect the return of their investments, and
earnings they would have realized from these investments, which were allowed to be
expropriated due to discrimination by Industry Canada and the Canadian court system.
Please see attached spreadsheet detailing investments, loans and fees, as well as funds
required to be deposited into the courts to date, which is attached and made a part

hereof.

The Shiell family and their corporations expect reimbursement of :
TWENTY-ONE MILLION, TWO HUNDRED SEVENTY-TWO THOUSAND,
NINE HUNDRED AND NINETY DOLLARS ($ 21,272,990.00)

plus interest and damages.

These investments, and the returns from these investments, were not protected by Canada
nor were the Shiells and their companies treated with the minimum standards of

treatment in Canada under NAFTA.

If the consultations and negotiations are unsuccessful, the Shiell family shall submit in
its own right and on behalf of its enterprises, Brokerwood Products International (U.S.),
Inc., Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc., Kitchens International, Inc.,
Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc., Broussard Shiell Holdings, Inc. and Fleur de Lys

Trading Company, Inc., a claim for arbitration seeking damages as per the spreadsheet



attached, and made a part hereof, as well as payment of interest and the loss of future
revenue from these businesses, punitive damages, and compensation for personal

suffering.
October 8, 2008

Respectfully submitted :
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Losses as a result of the Conspiracy against the Shiell Family and their companies:

Loans and Investments by the Shiell family and their U.S. Companies to Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc, lost due to the fraudulently forced bankruptcy and the purposeful
rejection of all of the bankruptcy claims they filed: (Note: loan balances do not include interest.)

Janet Broussard Shiell and William Shiell IV:

Loans $ 60,148.00
Credit Cards

Pay off of BPIC’s Royal Bank Visa and Master-

card Credit Cards due to personal guarantees $ 9,180.21
Rents

Unpaid rents for BPIC offices at 3814 St.Denis $ 66,139.38

Street, Montreal, Quebec

(Note: building was owned by the Shiells, but had to be
sold to fund legal fees and expenses due ongoing losses
from forced BPIC bankruptcy.)

Salaries Loaned Back to Company:

Salaries owed to the Shiell family that were loaned
back to BPIC from 2001 to 2003 as Crotone was refusing to
pay commissions they owed :

William Shiell IV
Janet Marie Broussard Shiell
William Shiell V

165,000.00
110,000.00
32,153.89

o B o

Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc:

Wire Transfer - Initial investment in BPIC in 1996. Sent

from Whitney Bank:

$100,000.00, converted to Canadian dollars at

June 2003 exchange rate of 1.5781 per Bank of

Canada rate on the date of the claim $ 157,180.00

Loans from 1998 to 2001




of $ 108,369.17 U.S. converted at 1.5781

Unpaid Commissions lost due to the fraud in the
forced bankruptcy of BPIC which caused BPIC’s
exclusive contract with Crotone to be canceled,
and BPIUS’ contract with BPIC to be worthless.
(Does not include interest)

Commissions and overages to September 30,
2002 only, per the Cerrelli/ Crotone U.S.
Sales affidavit and the contracts

Estimated commissions due Oct 2002

to the time the Contract was canceled by
the syndic/ trustee and court decision to
allow the settlement in June 2005

Based on the 2002 sales figures in

the Cerrelli/ Crotone sales affidavit
of $ 7,466,864.61, and increases
reflected in that affidavit, from year to
year, equal to more than 20% yearly,
we approximate sales, commissions
and overages to be:

Oct. 2002 to Sept. 2003 $ 9.000.000.00
Oct. 2003 to Sept. 2004 $ 10.800.000.00
Oct. 2004 to June 2005 $ 9.000.000.00

Using the same percentages from

actual reported sales of appx.18%
including overages/ 50% of which
was due BPIUS per their contract

with BPIC

Loss of earnings from the cancellation of the
contract and three (3) year non-compete clause,
which would have returned all customers

to BPIC and BPIUS, as Crotone was
prohibited from selling to them for three (3)
years from any cancellation date.

Using the same method as above, showing
of average growth of appx. 20 % each year
from June 2005 to June 2008

$

$

$ 171,017.39

1,900,285.80

2,592,000.00



2005-2006 Estimated Sales $ 16.000.000.00
2006-2007 Estimated Sales $ 19.000.000.00
2007-2008 Estimated Sales 22.000.000.00

Using the same percentages from

actual reported sales of appx.18%
including overages/ 50% of which
was due BPIUS per their contract
with BPIC

Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.

The remainder of the commissions from the Crotone
exclusive U.S. sales contract are due to this company.

&~ A B

5,130,000.0C

1,900,285.80
2,592,000.00
5,130,000.00

Plus interest and attorneys fees as per the BPIC and BPIUS contracts.

Note: This does not compensate for the perpetual loss of
these customers that it had taken the Shiells and their
companies and agents a decade to build up at the time
of the signing of the Crotone contract.

Broussard-Shiell Holdings, Inc.

Loans :

(Broussard-Shiell owned the Cabi-Fab, Inc.
building and had to sell this building

to fund legal expenses and costs to try to
protect the Shiell family and their companies’
investments.)

Kitchens International, Inc.

Loans

Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc.

Loans

$

$

$

110,308.72

65,653.32

806,890.30



Miscellaneous:

Attorneys Fees in the U.S. and Canada $ 238,650.00

Funds of U.S. Companies Regired to be

Deposited in Quebec Court 3 36.000.00
TOTAL $  21,272.990.80

Note: Interest charges compounded on the amount of total losses would cause this total to almost
double. This listing also does not include the personal loss of our time in these court battles and,
the time taken away from current business to prepare for these court appearances. As well,
nothing is included for the personal suffering endured from 1999 to the present.



As of October 7, 2008 WITHOUT PREJUDICE

SYNOPSIS OF ACCUSATIONS OF INTERNATIONAL FRAUD AND CONSPIRACY

TO BE FILED AS AN ATTACHMENT TO NAFTA COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES AGAINST
THE GOYERNMENT OF CANADA IN VIOLATION OF CHAPTER 11, ARTICLES 1102.1,
1102.2,1102.3, 1103.1, 1103.2, 1104, 1105.1, 1106.1(a), 1106.1(g.), 1109.1(a), 1109.1(c,) 1109.4(a.)

1110.1(b.), 1110-1(¢c,) 1110.4

Parties Involved:

The Shiell Family: William Shiell IV, Janet-Marie Broussard Shiell and William Shiell V

Sole shareholders, investors, and incorporators of the Shiell Companies listed below. (All U.S. born
citizens). These family members filed bankruptcy claims for unpaid salaries, loans, and unpaid rents due
from Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. All of these claims were rejected, with no valid
explanation or justification, by the Bank of Montreal representative in his capacity as sole inspector in the
bankruptcy of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. The bank’s representative has knowingly
filed a false claim based on a nonexistent judgement, with absolutely no documentation in proof of this
claim against Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc., for the sole purpose of depriving the
U.S. investors of their investments and payment for their services per their rights under International Law,
The Bank of Montreal then fraudulently forced the bankruptcy by approving its own totally false claim
despite the contestations of the other creditors who were present at the first meeting of the creditors.

The Shiell U.S. and Canadian Companies :

Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. (BPIUS)

Louisiana corporation acting as a U.S. agent and distributor for Cabi-Fab, Inc., a distributor for Midland
2000, Inc. and Cuisine Crotone, Inc., as well as an investor in Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc., and their major sub-agent for U.S. sales for the Crotone contract. Commissions due this
investor and sub-agent, in violation of NAFTA Chapter 11 articles protecting such investments, were
illegally required to be withheld from payment when due to Brokerwood Products International (U.S.),
Inc. by the Bank of Montreal.

Kitchens International, Inc. (Louisiana corporation)
Fleur de Lys Trading Company, Inc. (Louisiana corporation)

Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc. (Massachusetts corporation)

Louisiana and Massachusetts corporations acting as distributors for Cabi-Fab, Inc., Midland 2000, Inc.
and Cuisine Crotone, Inc., as well as U.S. investors in and lenders to Cabi-Fab, Inc. and Brokerwood
Products International (Canada), Inc. These U.S. corporations were irreparably damaged by actions of the
Bank of Montreal and their co-conspirators, Litwin, Boyadjian (trustee/ syndic in bankruptcy) and Cuisine
Crotone, under defaults of provisions of NAFTA Chapter 11 investment guarantees.

Brokerwood Products International(Canada), Inc. (BPIC)

Canadian chartered corporation acting as the exclusive U.S. agent for Cuisine Crotone, Inc. and investor
(through U.S. investments from Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc.), in Cabi-Fab, Inc. This



company sold only in the U.S. through U.S. sub-agents and customers, and did not sell any products in
Canada.

Broussard-Shiell Holdings. Inc.

A Canadian holding company for the Shiell family. Due to the forced demise of BPIC, this company also
acted as the Canadian “arm” of the Shiells’ U.S. companies to interact with Canadian government
agencies and Canadian factories after the BPIC forced bankruptcy. This was necessary to protect the
remaining assets of the Shiells’ U.S. companies after the closure of Cabi-Fab, Inc. and the forced
bankruptcy of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. by the Bank of Montreal.

Governments of Canada and Quebec and their Agencies :

Office of the Superintendent of Bankruptcy Canada, an agency of Industry Canada

Government watchdog for Canadian bankruptcies, represented by Mr. Gilles-Normand Lavallee as
superintendent of the Montreal office of this agency. He knowingly approved contested fraudulent claims
in the Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. , bankruptcy and illegally appointed a solitary
hostile inspector, the Bank of Montreal. He purposely ignored 100% of the claims and contestations in
this bankruptcy by American investors. According to Canadian bankruptcy law, this office is responsible
for protecting the assets of the bankrupt estate and investigating complaints by creditors, yet this agency
has steadfastly refused investigate complaints by the U.S. creditors and investors against the trustee/
syndic and the Bank of Montreal.

The Export Development Company (EDC)

Canadian government agency that provides required receivable insurance on foreign export receivables of
Canadian manufacturers to the U.S. All Canadian banks require this insurance before they will extend
lines of credit to Canadian manufacturers based on foreign receivables. This government agency conspired
to cancel credit insurance for the U.S. investors of Cabi-Fab, Inc. necessary for these investors to continue
to do business in Canada under their contracts as sub-agents and agents for Canadian factories.

Superior Court of Quebec (Judge Gascon), Appeals Court of Quebec

Canadian courts and judges that willfully and maliciously discriminated against the Shiells and their U.S.
corporations that had invested in Canada, instead of according them treatment equal to Canadian nationals
who were investors. The Shiells and their companies were not allowed to protect their Canadian
investments. These courts purposely did not allow these U.S. companies due process of law either under
Canadian law or International law, per the protections provided under NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104 and 1105. The Shiells also believe there were numerous violations of the Canadian Charter of
Rights and the U.N. Charter of Human Rights inherent in the Canadian court decisions by these courts in
these cases.

Roval Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP)

Represented by RCMP Inspector Caron. He turned the Shiells’ fraud complaint against the syndic
(trustee), Bank of Montreal, Cuisine Crotone, and their attorneys, over to Industry Canada who has failed
to respond to this complaint.



Investment Quebec

A Quebec Provincial government agency that offers grants and special financing for investing
corporations in new enterprises that create job development and new business in Quebec. After many
meetings with the Shiells and their attorney, Kenneth Adessky, they sent Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry,
Ltd., a new enterprise of the Shiells intended to replace Cabi-Fab, Inc., a letter of intent for funding and
grants for a new factory. They consequently discriminated against these U.S. investors and rescinded this
funding after false negative credit information was maliciously provided by the hostile Bank of Montreal
in a purposeful attempt to damage the Shiells and their companies. The Shiells’ U.S. companies had
invested in Fleur de Lys, Ltd., and this company had used these investments to lease factory space and
make contract commitments they could no longer honor. Adessky suggested bankruptcy as the company
had no assets and the Shiells’ U.S. companies lost their investments because of the Bank of Montreal.

Barreau de Quebec (The Quebec Bar Association)

This government agency is responsible for investigating all complaints against Quebec lawyers, and also
provides member lawyers with malpractice insurance and defends them against such complaints, causing
this agency to be nothing more than a “fox watching the henhouse.” Although the Shiells and their
companies have filed numerous complaints against all of the Quebec lawyers named above, with the
exception of their current Iawyers, the bar has repeatedly failed to respond, other than to confirm they
were “investigating.” The oldest complaint, against Adessky and the syndic (trustee)’s lawyers, as well as
the Bank of Montreal’s lawyers, is now more than two years old, and is without any resolution.

Canadian Companies Not Related to the Shiells’ Companies Involved in This Case:

The Bank of Montreal

One of the all powerful “MAJOR SIX” Chartered Canadian Banks (per Statistics Canada) that control
90% of all funds available for business financing in Canada. The Bank of Montreal, through their branch
manager in St. Hubert, Quebec, enticed the Shiells and their U.S. companies to invest in Cabi-Fab and
then, through unfair business practices and discrimination, forced Cabi-Fab into bankruptcy to the
detriment of these companies’ and their investors. This same bank later forced Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. into bankruptcy using a false claim based on the same loan documents, while
at the same time purposely withholding settlement documents on this loan guarantee. They then obtained
the proxy of a litigious customer of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. in order to force the
bankruptcy. The Bank of Montreal is the major player in this conspiracy to defraud U.S. investors
by engineering a settlement that cost all the U.S. investors of Brokerwood Canada and Cabi-Fab the
loss of their investments. This bank also insisted on being appointed the sole inspector in the
Brokerwood Products International Canada, Inc. bankruptcy by the superintendent, despite strenuous
objections and the fact that the bank was not only a creditor in litigation with the bankrupt, but was also
hostile to the Shiells and their companies. (Note: Bank of Montreal also owns Harris Bank in the U.S.)

Litwin, Bovadjian, Syndics (trustees) in Bankruptcy

Syndics (trustees) in bankruptcy and co-conspirators in the Crotone settlement. This syndic purposely
accepted contested fraudulent claims, unproved by any documentation whatsoever, of the Bank of
Montreal to force the bankruptcy of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc., despite objections
by the other legitimate creditors. They were principals in engineering and allowing an unacceptable



settlement of only one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) from Crotone, which settlement was made
for the sole purpose of defrauding the investors and U.S. sub-agents of payment of commissions due them
under this contract. This settlement was for full and final settlement of a Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. lawsuit, for unfair trade practices and fraud regarding unpaid commissions
and overages exceeding ten million dollars based on an exclusive U.S. sales contract with Crotone. This
lawsuit was settled against the wishes of 100% of the U.S. creditors of the bankrupt. These creditors
represented more than ninety per cent (90%) of the true claims in the bankruptcy.

Sodefin. Inc.

A Montreal consulting firm that worked with Investment Quebec, represented by Michael Stante. Mr.
Stante introduced the Shiells to Amodio Cerrelli (a Calabrian-born Italian who had emigrated to Montreal)
who owned a manufacturing facility in Montreal.

Cuisine Crotone, Inc.. Boiseries Crotone, Inc. and Craftmaster, Inc.

A Montreal furniture and cabinet manufacturer, operating under the above corporations, who was
introduced to the Shiells by Sodefin through Investment Quebec. Boiseries and Cuisine Crotone /
Craftmaster, all entities of the Cerrelli family working under the Boiseries name at the time, signed an
exclusive U.S. sales contract with Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. This contract was
purposefully and continuously breached, even to the extent that this company secretly competed with its
exclusive agent for U.S. government HUD contracts. Co-conspirators with the Bank of Montreal and the
syndic/ trustee Litwin in a settlement that defrauded U.S. investors and unjustly enriched the Crotone
companies. This company later claimed the exclusive contract had been breached because the Shiells and
their U.S. companies were also selling Canadian cabinetry from other manufacturers under other NAFTA
contracts, although their contract did not exclude such sales. This was an invalid defense as such an
exclusion would have been a NAFTA violation under Chapter 11, article 1106.1(g).

Crotone Cabinets, Inc. (U.S.)

A U.S. (New York) corporation related to Cuisine Crotone, expressly founded to hide U.S. sales and
avoid paying commissions and overages to Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc., per the
exclusive contract with Cuisine Crotone in Canada. This company’s purpose was to provide Crotone with
a U.S. entity to hide sales per the Brokerwood/ Crotone U.S. sales contract and to bid against their
exclusive U.S. agent to win and control the New York City Housing Authority HUD cabinetry contract for
many years, despite the fact that this authority was originally a customer of Brokerwood Products
(Canada), Inc.’s U.S. sub-agents to be protected under their exclusive contract with Crotone. This
authority was informed by the Shiells that the cabinets sold directly by Crotone did not meet minimum
HUD specifications, but continued to award the contract to Crotone because of lower pricing. Crotone
Cabinets has also sold the same substandard cabinetry to many housing authorities across the U.S.
including Chicago, Philadelphia and Baltimore.

Cabi-Fab. Inc.

A Canadian factory the Shiells and their U.S. companies and Canadian companies were convinced to
invest in by the St. Hubert, Quebec branch manager of the Bank of Montreal. This company was wrongly
forced into bankruptcy by the Bank of Montreal with the sole purpose of damaging the U.S. investors, and
is now dissolved due to the unfair trade practices of the Bank of Montreal.



Midland 2000 Corporation, Inc.

A Canadian factory in Montreal that one of the Shiells’ companies became an exclusive U.S. agent for
after Cabi-Fab’s forced bankruptcy. The Shiells’ U.S. companies were also customers of this factory for a
short period in a futile effort to complete contracts unfinished by the demise of Cabi-Fab. Owned by
Lebanese-born Canadians, Midland was never able to produce cabinetry of acceptable quality or complete
orders. When this factory went into bankruptcy in 2001, the Bank of Montreal, as financier, became
hostile to Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. and the Shiells. The Shiells had refused to
acknowledge debt, as required by the bank in order to collect on government-backed export insurance in
place on Midland’s receivables, because their companies were owed far more in damages and
commissions than the invoices appearing as Midland receivables due from their U.S. companies.

Just before the forced bankruptcy of Midland, two individuals, who appeared to be of Arabic descent,
tried to “shake down” the Shiells in Montreal claiming they were owed these same receivables. These
individuals physically attacked the Shiells in Montreal at the offices of Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc. (SEE PHOTOS). Unbelievably, the Montreal police were never able to identify the
perpetrators despite DNA and blood samples, as well as a beeper left at the crime scene.

Lipman, Leebosh, April, Chartered Accounts (Montreal)

Canadian chartered accountant representing Brokerwood Products International (Canada) Inc. in
Montreal. Cecil April, one of the partners, now deceased, was a friend of the Shiells as well. Mr. April
helped the Shiells prepare business plans and cash flow documents, and attended a loan signing with the
Bank of Montreal for the refinancing of Cabi-Fab in 1999 at the offices of Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. at 3814 St. Denis Street in Montreal. Mr. April was present to check all loan
documents and advise the Shiells of their acceptability before they signed these documents.

U.S. Companies Involved:

Kitchens by Hunter (George Hunter) as U.S. sub-agent to the Shiells companies:

U.S. agent for the Shiells’ companies, The principal is an American, George Hunter, who resides in
Pennsylvania. He was a decorated U.S. Army veteran and respected school teacher. This firm has acted as
agents for several of the Shiell corporations since 1994. Although not a direct investor in Cabi-Fab or
Brokerwood Products International (Canada) Inc., Mr. Hunter invested his time and money to promote
and sell products for Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. and Crotone. He and his firm were
defrauded of commissions and overages due per the contract with Brokerwood Products International
(Canada), Inc. because of the breach and default of Crotone. He has been even further damaged by the
numerous Canadian government’s agencies who have allowed a fraudulently orchestrated bankruptcy to
proceed unchallenged.

Dearborn, LLI.C

A Chicago-based U.S. corporation and customer of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.,
Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. and Cabi-Fab, Inc. Dearborn was involved in continuing
litigation with these companies in Canada and the U.S. Dearborn was deliberately sought out by the Bank
of Montreal to fraudulently force the bankruptcy of Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.
through false claims and a proxy given to the Bank of Montreal. Dearborn’s false claim, filed by the Bank



of Montreal at the initial meeting of the creditors in June 2003, did not disclose the fact that Dearborn
was still involved in litigation with Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. in Canada at the
time of the forced bankruptcy, This is in direct and explicit violation of Canadian bankruptcy laws.
Although the superintendent promised not to count the vote of this litigious customer, the syndic included
it. Dearborn LLC changed its name to Dearborn Holding, LL.C, per the Illinois secretary of state
corporations’ database. The sole principal now shown in not the same individual involved in this
bankruptcy, and is unknown to the Shiells.

Montreal Law Firms Working Against the Shiells and their Companies :

Sternthal, Katznelson

Attorneys for Cuisine Crotone in the lawsuits involving Brokerwood International (U.S.) Inc. and
Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. in the Canadian courts, represented by Leon Greenberg.
Conspirators in the settlement with Litwin and the Bank of Montreal. This firm knowingly filed false
affidavits, on behalf of their client, in the U.S. district court and U.S. Court of Appeal that completely
contradicted the affidavits they had filed in the Quebec courts on behalf of their client, Cuisine Crotone.
These actions were a purposeful and successful attempt to stop the Shiells and their U.S. companies from
being provided treatment equal to Canadian nationals or due process of law in either the U.S. or Canadian
courts under Chapter 11 articles.

This firm kept Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. out of the U.S. courts by filing affidavits on
behalf of their client which they knew were perjured. These affidavits reversed sworn affidavits filed in
Canada by them and now claimed the Canadian file was the same as the U.S. file, that the Canadian file
preceded and was more developed that the U.S. lawsuit, and that their client Crotone was amenable, as
were the Canadian courts, in completing litigation in Canada. The U.S. court believed this perjury and
dismissed the U.S. case. Once Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. amended its claim in
Canada to include the damages in the U.S. lawsuit, this law firm insisted that Brokerwood Products
International (U.S.), Inc. was a “foreign corporation” with no presence in Canada (not a U.S. investor who
was required to be treated equally as a Canadian corporation would have been under NAFTA), and that as
such were required to deposit a minimum of $ 78,000.00 in PREPAID COSTS to the court before they
would be allowed due process in the Canadian courts.

This firm already knew that Brokerwood Products had previously deposited $ 36,000.00 in the Canadian
courts and had no more funds available to deposit, as their client had failed to pay commissions per the
Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc./ Cuisine Crotone and Brokerwood Products
International (U.S.), Inc./ Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. sales agencies agreements
governing all U.S. sales of Crotone products. They were further aware that such deposits should not have
been required per the terms of minimum standard treatment under NAFTA chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104 and 1108.

.

Frishman, Freidman,

Attorneys for the Syndic, Litwin, Boyadjian, represented by Lewis Cytrynbaum. Conspirators in the
settlement of the Crotone lawsuit with the Syndic against the wishes of the true mass of creditors. Mr.
Cytrynbaum has, over the past three years, unconscionably and maliciously damaged the Shiells and their
U.S. companies in his filings and motions. In these filings, he claimed the syndic was acting on behalf of
the “mass of the creditors™ (totally untrue as the mass of the creditors had not been recognized or their



claims reviewed after unfair rejections by the Bank of Montreal as sole inspector).

Cytrynbaum purposely misled the Canadian courts into believing the Shiells and their companies had no
legitimate claims in the bankruptcy by convincing the Quebec court that their claims were unfounded. He
personally defamed the Shiells and painted them as liars, corrupt business operators, and overly litigious
“Americans.” knowing the Canadian court does not look favorably upon the American legal system or
Americans in litigation. During one court hearing when he was trying to convince the judge to allow the
trustee to accept the one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) settlement offer of Crotone, he presented
a stack of copies of the invoices Crotone had turned over of U.S. sales (made under the Brokerwood
Products International (Canada), Inc./ Crotone U.S. agency agreement), and “challenged” the court to find
George Hunter’s name as sales agent on any of them .He insinuated George Hunter was nothing more than
a “friend” of the Shiells who was making a false claim. The stack of invoices was about four feet high,
and naturally the judge did want to look through such documents, but instead believed this attorney would
not mislead the courts purposely. In actuality, Mr. Hunter’s name, as well as that of his own sub-agents
(Dick Sartoris and Tony Trigona), appeared on many of those invoices.

Dunton, Rainville

Attorneys for the Bank of Montreal. Major conspirators in the settlement of the Crotone lawsuit with the
Syndic against the wishes of the true mass of creditors. This law firm was equally responsible for damages
to the Shiells and their U.S. companies. They not only filed the false claim of the Bank of Montreal and
claimed this fraudulent claim was accurate, they also supported claims by the syndic, and his attorney,
Lewis Cytrynbaum, that the Shiells and their companies’ claims were unsubstantiated, all to the detriment
of the Shiells and their U.S. companies. This firm knew the claims were valid, as their representative had
seen the actual supporting documents attached to the claims.

Heenan, Blakie

Law firm that is representing Kenneth Addesky against the Shiells and their companies’ suit charging Mr.
Adessky with failing to file the needed securities he had claimed to have filed to protect these companies,
and advising Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. to file an intent to make a proposal to their
creditors, under the Canadian bankruptcy act, without these securities actually filed in court. Because of
Mr. Adessky’s failure to file these securities, and his advice to make an offer to the creditors, one hostile
creditor, the Bank of Montreal, was able to file a fraudulent claim and cause a forced bankruptcy with
disastrous effects for the Shiells and their companies’ investments. Heenan, Blakie demanded that the
Shiells U.S. companies, that were parties to this suit, deposit twenty-five thousand dollars ($ 25,000.00)
with the Canadian courts as a guarantee against any “costs” just to be allowed to proceed with their case
against Adessky. This is particularly noteworthy as a direct violation of NAFTA that accords equal
treatment to all investors of each party that signed the trade agreement. This firm should have been well
aware of the provisions of NAFTA, as it is one of the major law firms in Montreal, whose partners even
once included Pierre Trudeau, ex-prime Minister of Canada.

Law Firms Representing the Shiell Family and their U.S. and Canadian Corporations:

Adessky, I.esage

Represented by Kenneth Adessky. This attorney purposely failed to sue the Bank of Montreal as
mandated. He failed to file securities needed to protect the Shiells and their companies’ investments due



to extremely questionable loan documents produced by the Bank of Montreal at the loan signing for Cabi-
Fab. Mr. Adessky convinced the Shiells to file for bankruptcy protection for Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. only after two suits were filed by Cabi-Fab suppliers. Adessky accomplished
this by assuring the Shiells that he had filed all securities necessary when nothing in fact had been filed.

Adessky had deliberately failed to protect the U.S. investors of Cabi-Fab, the Shiells and their U.S.
corporations. He convinced William Shiell IV to sign the loan documents in March 1999, despite the fact
that the loan documents bore no set interest rates or expiry dates for the loans, and some documents were
written in French which William Shiell IV did not understand at all. This allowed the Bank of Montreal to
call these loans, after substantial investments by the Shiells’ U.S. companies, and to charge exorbitant fees
and interest rates against a loan guarantee signed by Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc.

Adessky also approved loan documents to be signed that required Brokerwood Products International
(U.S.), Inc. to allow two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000.00) of their commissions to be held by Cabi-
Fab indefinitely with no security for these held funds. The Bank of Montreal made out a note for these
commissions showing the funds were due from Cabi-Fab, Inc. but payable to Brokerwood Products
International (Canada), Inc. not Brokerwood Products International U.S., Inc. whose funds these were.
This was a “forced” investment of a U.S.” companies’ funds. The note was further marked that it could
not be presented for payment. This note was written in French and Adessky was asked to translate it, but
did not do so until much later.

There is no rationale for Adessky advising William Shiell to sign or accept such documents that basically
allowed the bank to cause the non-payment of two hundred thousand dollars ($ 200,000.00) of
commissions due Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. This defrauded Brokerwood Products
International (U.S.), Inc. of their commissions earned per their contract with Cabi-Fab, Inc., but held per
the Bank of Montreal’s requirement, without any chance of recouping these funds once the Bank of
Montreal canceled Cabi-Fab’s financing and froze all the bank accounts. To add insults to injury, Adessky
never sued the Bank of Montreal despite repeated demands by the Shiells that he immediately do so.

Louis Landreville

An attorney in Montreal who took over the bankruptcy file from Legare. He claimed to be an “expert in
bankruptcy” (which he definitely was not) and agreed to sue the Bank of Montreal. In fact, Landreville
only delayed the claims of the Shiells and their companies, and allowed the court to let Litwin accept
Crotone’s settlement offer of a mere one hundred thousand dollars ($ 100,000.00) as full settlement of a
ten million-dollar lawsuit against Crotone. Litwin’s attorney, Lewis Cytrynbaum, convinced the courts
that this was a “bird in the hand” to be accepted for the “benefit of the mass of the creditors.” There was
no mass of creditors as all claims, except for the bank’s own fraudulent claim, were rejected by the bank.
The true mass of creditors had already rejected an even larger offer from Crotone and had informed Litwin
of their solid opposition to the acceptance of this settlement.

Once this objective was realized due to Landreville’s failure to protect the Shiells and their companies’
investments in the bankruptcy, Landreville’s daughter, just graduated from law school, was suddenly
offered a lucrative position with Dunton, Rainville, a major law firm who was representing the syndic,
Litwin, in the claims against him by the Shiells and their U.S. companies. To the Shiells’ knowledge, she
is still employed with that firm.

Mr. Landreville had agreed, in his original mandate with the Shiells, to sue the Bank of Montreal, and



then as all the other Canadian law firms, refused to. He billed the Shiells for writing a “demand” letter to
the Bank of Montreal. They later discovered that he never even sent this demand letter out. In court, he
continually joked that only the attorneys would be paid in this bankruptcy.

Kounadis, Perrault

Ross Robins took the bankruptcy file over from Landreville and purported to act on behalf of the Shiells
regarding their claims in the Brokerwood Products International (Canada). Inc. bankruptcy. Instead of
bringing their claims before a judge, he conspired with the syndic’s attorney, Lewis Cytrynbaum, to
reduce the claims without reason or benefit, and against the written instructions and directions of the
Shiell family. This firm had also represented Midland 2000 previously and the Shiells have been informed
they also work with the Bank of Montreal. This fact was not disclosed to the Shiells or they would
definitely not have given this firm any mandate, much less twenty thousand dollars ($ 20,000.00).

Delover. Pierre and Markakis

Represented by Tom Markakis, this firm took over the bankruptcy file of Brokerwood Products
International, Inc. and the Crotone/ BPIUS lawsuit originally filed by Francois Legare, and is presently
representing the Shiells and their companies in these files. He cannot explain why there is no court date
yet agreed to with the syndic (trustee), the Bank of Montreal and the Canadian courts for the review of the
Shiells and their companies’ claims to proceed.

Legare, Fortier and Lozeau, L’ Africain

Other attorneys who worked on these files in Canada for the Shiells and their companies. Neither of these
firms has been successful in forcing the Canadian courts to review the unjustly denied claims of the
Shiells, their U.S. companies and their U.S. agent George Hunter in this bankruptcy.

Grey. Casgrain

Attorney presently handling the Shiells and their companies’ lawsuit against Adessky. Mr. Grey recently
informed the Shiells they have little chance in Canada to win a case against a Canadian lawyer in a
Canadian court, and that fraud charges would never be accepted in any Canadian court by any Canadian
Judge against the Bank of Montreal. By simply surfing the Internet, this fact can be documented given the
decisions of the Canadian courts which prove this premise.

U.S. Law Firms Representing the Shiell Family and their U.S. Corporations

Simon, Peregrine, Smith, Redfearn, (Robert Redfearn/ N.O., LA)

Previous legal counsel in Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. lawsuit wrongly sent “back to
Canada”, through perjured affidavits, as this specific lawsuit never actually existed in Canada.

Panzeca and Snakenberg, (Metairie, LA).

Current U.S. counsel in new Louisiana lawsuit against Crotone.



HISTORY OF THE EVENTS THAT HAVE DAMAGED THE SHIELL FAMILY AND THEIR
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COMPANIES :

Janet and William Shiell (native New Orleanians) have worked designing and selling cabinetry,
countertops and accessories to U.S. developers, builders and government housing authorities on
behalf of Canadian and U.S. manufacturers, through their U.S. companies for the past twenty (20)
years. These sales required them to travel throughout the U.S. to take precise field measures at
U.S. project sites, in order to customize cabinetry designs to be used to order cabinets to fit the
exact finished dimensions of the buildings and the requirements of their customers.

Until 1995, they chiefly operated under Brokerwood Products International (U.S.), Inc. (hereafter
referred to as BPIUS), a Louisiana corporation.

After NAFTA was passed, they chose to become actual brokers of Canadian products to U.S.
builders and developers, instead of just commissioned agents.

They chose to sell Canadian cabinets predominantly because the U.S. exchange rate was favorable
and products were well priced.

They invested one hundred thousand dollars ($ 100,000.00) to form a new Canadian corporation,
Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. (hereafter referred to as BPIC), and they are the
sole shareholders of that corporation.

They were required to form a Canadian corporation in order to open a Canadian bank account, pay
Canadian factories in Canadian funds, and hire Canadian employees to work with the Canadian
factories on U.S. orders.

This initial investment was wire transferred to BPIC’s bank account at the Royal Bank in Montreal
from the BPIUS account at the Whitney Bank in New Orleans in the fall of 1996.

BPIC then set about finding factories to manufacture goods in Canada for the U.S. market servicec
by the Shiells’ U.S. companies and their agent, George Hunter.

The Shiells, as the American investors representing BPIC, wrote to Investment Quebec, a
government agency, seeking a contract with a Canadian factory that could manufacture frame and
HUD cabinetry for the U.S. market.

They got a response to this letter from a business-consulting firm called SODEFIN, represented by
Michael Stante, who informed them that Investment Quebec had forwarded their letter to him.

Mr. Stante arranged a meeting and introduced them to Amodio Cerrelli, a Calabrian-born Italian
factory-owner in Montreal, who had never sold cabinetry in the U.S. but desperately needed an
entry to the U.S. market to save his floundering factory.

After negotiations, William Shiell, acting as president of BPIC, signed an exclusive agreement in
September 1996 with Cerrelli’s Canadian factory, Cuisine Crotone, to handle all cabinetry sales in
the U.S., which contract explicitly retained all customers as their own.
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SODEFIN was paid a $ 5,000.00 fee for this contract by both Crotone and BPIC.

After the contract was signed, the Shiells were required to provide, at their own expense as well as
the expense of their U.S. companies, the technical information needed to produce cabinets
specifically for the U.S. market, prototype samples of that cabinetry, and supervision and
inspection of the production of the final samples to be sent to U.S. laboratories and the Kitchen
Cabinet Manufactures Association, which agency certifies all cabinetry per HUD specifications to
be used by government housing authorities. The Shiells and their companies and personnel
provided, as well, detailed shop drawings for the production by the factory of all non-standard
cabinetry on their U.S. projects. (NAFTA violation under Chapter 11, article 1106)

The Shiells personally assisted Crotone in obtaining final U.S. KCMA certification on the
cabinetry Crotone was producing for the U.S. market as required by the Shiells and their U.S.
companies’ customers.

The Shiells and their companies further solely funded literature, advertising and mailings to their
customers and agents, as well as several U.S. trade shows to increase Crotone’s sales in the U.S.

They also funded the recruitment and training of all their U.S. sub-agents, whom they brought to
the factory to tour the facility.

Per the contract Brokerwood Products International (Canada), Inc. was to be reimbursed for these
expenses that were the responsibility of Crotone per the contract. Crotone never reimbursed any of
these expenses per the terms of the contract..

This contract was for a minimum three (3) year initial period and automatically renewed on its
anniversary date unless it was canceled by either party by certified mail during an explicit
anniversary period.

The terms for cancellation purposely included a strong cancellation and non-compete clause as
BPIC and its U.S. sub-agents had to divulge their U.S. customers and sub-agents to the factory
when products were ordered.

The Shiells required this clause to protect the money they had invested to develop these customers
in the U.S., as well costs to instruct Crotone on how to manufacture U.S. cabinetry for the HUD
and multi-family markets in the U.S.

This clause protected the Shiells, BPIC and BPIUS, in that in the event Crotone wanted to cancel,
once the U.S. customers had been divulged, Crotone was restricted from selling to any of the U.S.
customers and sub-agents sold to under the contract for an additional three (3) year period.

The contract also explicitly stipulated Crotone could not sell directly in the U.S. PERIOD! Orders
had to be placed by BPIC for all production to ensure BPIC was aware of all sales to be shipped to
the U.S.

This exclusive agreement to date has never been canceled per the terms of the contract, but
Crotone is as of this date, and has been for some time, selling directly to these same sub-agents
and customers in the U.S. in open breach and violation of the terms of this exclusive contract.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

The contract also specified that all commissions and overages due to BPIC had to be held in trust
under the Quebec civil and criminal codes, and that BPIC had the right to bill customers directly if
Crotone became delinquent on payment of commissions and overages. Not only were these
commissions and overages not held in trust, they were never paid to BPIC and BPIUS. (NAFTA
violation of Chapter 11, article 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

The contract further stipulated that Crotone could not assign these sales to any financial institution
without the permission of BPIC. In the event BPIC would allow this assignment, the bank would
have to agree in return to guarantee payment of the portion of those contracts that was due to
BPIC.

BPIC had been allowed, per the terms of the contract, to name U.S. sub-agents to work for BPIC to
handle all such sales. The primary sub-agent named by BPIC was its investor, BPIUS, and BPIC
signed a contract with BPIUS promising to pay BPIUS one-half (}2) of all commissions and
overages once it was paid by Crotone. Crotone never paid BPIC, causing BPIC to be unable to pay
BPIUS. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, article 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109,1110)

This Crotone agency agreement also said that all the customers belonged to BPIC and their agents
(BPIUS and George Hunter) not Crotone.

This contract required a minimal level of export sales to the U.S. each year. (NAFTA violation
under Chapter 11, Article 1106)

From 1997 to 2003, BPIUS invested in and lent money to BPIC.

BPIC used these investments and loans to invest in a Canadian factory (Cabi-Fab) to make
European-style cabinetry not manufactured by Crotone, and to pay operating expenses until the
BPIC could collect their commissions and overages from the factory they worked for as a broker
and agent, Cuisine Crotone in Montreal

Cuisine Crotone never paid BPIC on time or in full, causing BPIC to ask for additional loans and
investment funds from the Shiells’ U.S. companies.

In 1997, BPIUS signed an exclusive U.S. agency agreement with Cabi-Fab, Inc., another Canadian
factory, who manufactured frameless cabinetry. This is a different kind of cabinet than the frame
cabinetry Crotone manufacturers.

The terms of the Cabi-Fab contract were almost identical to the Crotone/ BPIC contract.

BPIC had invested $ 20,000 of BPIUS’ money in this factory in Iberville, Quebec at the urging of
the factory’s bank, the Bank of Montreal.

This bank was aware that the shareholders of BPIC were Americans and that BPIC had been
funded through American investments from BPIUS, which company had the same American

principals and shareholders, the Shiells.

In 1998, there was a massive ice storm causing Cabi-Fab to lose all hydro power for many months.
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Admittedly, this caused Cabi-Fab, Inc. a huge loss as contracts could not be finished on time.

Although Cabi-Fab requested help from the Canadian government and their bank, the Bank of
Montreal, because of this disaster, they were given almost no help. This was obvious
discrimination against the American investors, as other Canadian corporations got major grants as
well as government assistance and low interest loans.

Even without this help Cabi-Fab actually made up a good part of the loss within the year and was
turning a profit. Despite this remarkable recovery, the Bank continued giving Cabi-Fab problems,
and charging excessive exchange rates and refusing to increase needed receivable financing.

The bank was purposely strangling Cabi-Fab by only allowing financing on their U.S. receivables
of $ 200,000.00, when these government-insured receivables were more than double that amount.
This same bank was allowing other factories and manufacturers 90% of all their receivables.
Again, this was deliberate discrimination by the Bank of Montreal against the American investors
of Cabi-Fab, Inc. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

At this point, the majority of stock in Cabi-Fab, Inc. was owned by Canadian investors who also
operated the factory. These investors asked the Shiells to intervene with the Bank of Montreal re:
the financing shortages. The Shiells had no choice as the only alternative was to lose not only their
investment (through BPIUS), but also to lose all the sales of large projects their U.S. companies
had signed contracts on which were in progress.

These U.S. contracts included breach and liquidated damages clauses that would have destroyed
the Shiells’ U.S. companies had they failed to complete these projects.

Once again, additional funds had to be invested by “The Americans”- BPIUS and the Shiells.- to
fund work by Kenneth Adessky and Cecil April for a new factory business plan required by the
financing bank in order to get the bank to agree to increasing financing.

In March 1999, the Bank of Montreal finally met the Shiells and the Canadian investors of Cabi-
Fab at BPIC’s offices in Montreal for the signing

Present at this signing were Cabi-Fab’s attorney, Ken Adessky, Cecil April, the Bank of Montreal
(represented by a branch manager), the bank’s attorney, the Shiells and the two Canadian investors
of Cabi-Fab, Inc. Roland Arpin and Agostino Simone.

The Shiells had requested that all loan documents be produced in English as they did not read
French well enough to understand such documents. These documents should have been sent to the
Shiells’ lawyer (Ken Adessky) for review prior to the loan signing but were not, despite repeated
requests up until the morning of the meeting. The documents were also not all in English.

A main condition of the refinancing was that the Shiells and their U.S. companies increase their
investments in the factory by buying out the stock of some of the Canadian shareholders.

These loan documents, that the Shiells, Adessky and April saw for the first time at this meeting,
required BPIC, along with the two remaining Canadian investors, to guarantee Cabi-Fab’s loans.
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Although this had never been disclosed as a condition of the approved financing, the
Bank of Montreal also quite unbelievably now required Cabi-Fab to hold
commissions of two hundred thousand dollars ($ 200,000.00) currently due and
payable to their U.S. agent, BPIUS, indefinitely.

Another requirement was that BPIC invest additional capital of eighty thousand dollars
($ 80,000.00) as a condition of the refinancing. BPIC had to borrow this money from BPIUS.

As the bank had purposely stalled increasing the credit line to cover current receivable levels for
many months, the factory could not survive any further delays.

Their receivables were now over five hundred thousand dollars ($ 500,000.00) with only two
hundred thousand dollars ($ 200,000.00) of this financed.

Again, the American company BPIUS had no choice but to lend the money to BPIC for this
investment.

Both the Shiells’ personal and corporate lawyer in Canada, Kenneth Adessky, and their C.A., Cecil
April reviewed all of the loan documents during the signing, and advised William Shiell to sign
them even though some of them were in French which he does not understand, and some of them
had not been filled out as to interest rates and terms and expiry dates.

William Shiell was advised that if he did not sign all the documents the Bank would cut off Cabi-
Fab by calling their operating loans and receivable financing, causing the Shiells major business
and investment losses.

Their attorney, Ken Adessky, assured the Shiells he would immediately file securities for BPIUS
and BPIC, as well as the Shiells and their other U.S. corporations, to protect the funds they had
invested from any consequences these questionable loan documents and guarantees might have.

The signed “blank documents” now accorded the bank carte blanche to charge whatever they
chose and to use any expiration date they chose on the loans.

The Bank of Montreal claimed, to protect themselves now, in answer to a motion
regarding the suit they filed against BPIC on the loan guarantee in 2001, to have lost
these incriminating documents, BUT THE SHIELLS HAD COPIES OF THEM.

In December 1999, less than nine months after the bank had refinanced Cabi-Fab, Inc., the bank
started to threaten the Shiells that they would call Cabi-Fabs loans. (NAFTA violation of Chapter
11, article 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

After the bank had coerced the Shiells and BPIUS to invest more money in Cabi-Fab and allow
their commissions to remain unpaid, the Bank of Montreal now said they had “lost confidence” in
Cabi-Fab. Absolutely no valid reason for this loss of confidence was given. (NAFTA violation of
Chapter 11, article 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The Bank of Montreal sent subpoenas to BPIC from December 1999 to March 2000, each time
demanding the Shiells present themselves with their attorney at the offices of the bank’s attorneys,
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Dunton and Rainville.

As the Shiells were the main U.S. sales personnel for BPIUS, they were in the U.S. frequently and
had to return for these “command appearances” at great cost and the loss of invaluable time.

In this manner, the Bank of Montreal was escalating the damages they were already causing to the
Shiells and their companies.

The sole purpose of these meetings was solely to allow the bank and their attorneys to run up
unnecessary legal fees and expenses which they in turn charged to Cabi-Fab and deducted from
Cabi-Fab’s bank accounts. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, article 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105,
1109,1110)

Additionally, the bank began deducting enormous “special fees” each month for account
“management.” They also insisted in sending in their auditors and deducted thousands of dollars
from the Cabi-Fab accounts to pay these auditors. Valuable factory personnel had to spend an
entire week with the auditors causing a slowdown of production. This was nothing but a thinly
veiled attempt to cause Cabi-Fab, Inc. and their investors losses in order to give the bank an excuse
to cease funding. (NAFTA vielation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

Unbelievably, in December 1999, Cabi-Fab also got a letter from the Canadian government agency
Export Development Corp. retracting all future insurance for any of the receivables of any of the
Shiell’s companies.

Export Development claimed this cancellation was because one of these companies owned stock
in Cabi-Fab, Inc. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

The Bank of Montreal and the Export Development Corp. both already knew this only too well as
the bank had not only orchestrated these investments as a condition of refinancing but been present
at the signing of the loans when the shareholders were all identified. Now unbelievably they both
contended that they were unaware of this investment.

The Shiells U.S. companies now no longer had credit insurance through Export Development or
credit with the very factory they had been forced to invest in. Additionally, Cabi-Fab, Inc. had an
exclusive contract with BPIUS and could not sell directly to the U.S. customers, so this exclusion
effectively put Cabi-Fab, Inc. out of business and caused all of the shareholders’ stock to become
worthless. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

The factory could not finance any sales without this insurance and would not have the funds to buy
needed materials without such financing.

This rejection of insurance caused the Shiells U.S. companies to have to invest more money in the
factory in an attempt to finish U.S. projects.

To add insults to injury, Export Development also informed the Bank of Montreal that Crotone,
who had to insure all their export receivables including sales to BPIC, BPIUS and the Shiells’
other U.S. companies, had given BPIUS and BPIC bad credit ratings.
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This was a deliberate, calculated attempt by the Bank of Montreal, who works hand-in-hand with
the Export Development Corporation, to damage the Shiells and their companies, as Crotone owed
and was not paying BPIUS and BPIC, rather than the reverse. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11,
articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

Crotone purposely failed to disclose the commissions and overages it owed BPIC and BPIUS that
offset these invoices, or that there were ongoing serious problems causing customers to refuse to
pay due to incomplete, unacceptable and sub-standard products on many of the unpaid invoices.

It was to Crotone’s benefit to try to cause the Shiells’ U.S. companies the loss of their Export
Development credit insurance by providing false derogatory credit information, as these U.S.
companies would then not be able to purchase and supply Canadian cabinetry to their customers,
allowing Crotone to sell direct when the customers had to look elsewhere for products to complete
their projects. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

The Bank of Montreal next informed the Shiells and their lawyer, Ken Adessky, in March 2000,
that despite the investment and the withheld commissions, they were not going to continue
financing Cabi-Fab and would call all loans on March 30",

Cabi-Fab was not behind on any loan payments or interest payments, yet the bank steadfastly
refused to continue financing without cause to the detriment of BPIUS, BPIC, the Shiells and their
other companies. (NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

This was blatant discrimination against the American investors whom they had forced to invest.

The Shiells, with the help of their CA and attorney, and again at more expense, went to several
Canadian banks trying to get refinanced, but no banks were even remotely interested in financing
Cabi-Fab once they knew the Bank of Montreal was calling their loans.

The Shiells finally came to the realization that unlike the huge number of different banks in
America, there are only six large Canadian Chartered Banks that handle commercial financing
that Cabi-Fab had required.

These banks control over ninety per cent ( 90%) of the banking assets and capital available for
business financing in Canada.

All these banks work closely together and trade information.

Unfortunately, it now became crystal clear that the Bank of Montreal was obviously providing the
other banks with negative references regarding the Shiells and their ventures.

In desperation, when no other Canadian bank would take over the receivable financing and line of
credit loans for the factory, the Shiells again insisted the Bank of Montreal continue financing and
complained that it was only one year since the new financing was accorded.

The Shiells even went to the trade union that Cabi-Fab workers belonged to, the FTQ, and asked
this union to invest to save the workers jobs.
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Because Cabi-Fab, Inc. had American investors, this union turned them down in favor of investing
in a neighboring factory owned by French Canadians. This factory went bankrupt six months later.
(NAFTA violation of chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

The Bank of Montreal once again ignored the Shiells appeals to reconsider, and instead on the 30™
of March 2000 froze all of the accounts of Cabi-Fab, including the payroll and petty cash
accounts.( NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109,1110)

This effectively immediately shut down the factory causing enormous losses to the Shiell’s U.S.
companies when they could not complete contracts.

This action by the Bank of Montreal maliciously, calculatingly and deliberately damaged the
American and Canadian investors of Cabi-Fab. It also cost the loss of many of the Shiells’
companies’ U.S. customers.

At this time hundreds of thousands of dollars in U.S. contract work was in production, but the
bank refused to allow Cabi-Fab to remain operating to even finish those contracts.

The Bank of Montreal had been advised by the Shiells that if these projects were not completed,
U.S. customers would refuse to pay for goods already shipped and included in Cabi-Fab’s
receivables.

The Shiells informed the Bank that they would have to accept responsibility for any such losses as
they had refused to allow Cabi-Fab to operate until they could complete these projects.

The Bank of Montreal ignored the Shiells as they knew they had loan guarantees and could claim
any losses, even ones they “manufactured,” through these guarantees.

Once the Bank of Montreal froze all the Cabi-Fab bank accounts, they then systematically
deducted thousands of dollars from the bank accounts in unearned operating fees (on frozen
accounts that were not allowed to operate at all) and charges over the next eighteen (18) months.
(NAFTA violation of Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1110)

These charges continued even after the bankruptcy had finished, until the accounts were
completely drained.

These frozen account balances and the expropriation of their funds by the bank were apparently
never reported to the Bankruptcy syndic, Litwin.

Additionally, Canadian and Provincial tax refunds for goods exported to the U.S., and
reimbursements for payments to injured workers were normally sent to Cabi-Fab during this

period.

These refunds probably went to the bank, and were put in the same frozen accounts in order to
continuing charging operating fees on accounts that could not operate.

Some of the funds in one of the bank accounts belonged to BPIUS, who had been obliged to make
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deposits in order to fund payrolls to attempt to finish their projects.
The bank was repeatedly made aware of this fact, but expropriated these funds as well.

The factory was then warned by the bank that they could not even open another bank account
anywhere as the bank owned all their assets through assignment in the loan documents. Any such
new bank account would be immediately seized by the Bank.

The Shiells were in disbelief that a bank could deliberately stop a factory from continuing
operations by refusing to allow them to open bank accounts anywhere else, even though the Shiells
had agreed to fund these accounts from U.S. investment money.

As Cabi-Fab had no bank account, it could not pay suppliers, payrolls or purchase materials. Cabi-
Fab had no option but to shut its doors and to file for bankruptcy.

The Shiells again had to fund this, as the Syndic’s in Canada require prepayment.

More than 100 unions workers were losing their jobs and demanded the “rich Americans™ put up
more money, but the Shiells knew this would be throwing good money after bad without any
financing in place.

To add further to the damages to the Shiells and their companies, a newspaper article appeared in
the local Iberville newspaper claiming the “rich American investors” of Cabi-Fab had caused the
employees of Cabi-Fab to lose their jobs. This clearly shows anti-Americanism in Quebec.

The syndic in the Cabi-Fab bankruptcy was Gerald Litwin of Litwin, Boyadjian, who was
recommended by the Shiells’ chartered accountant, Cecil April.

The Shiells also had to pay Adessky more than $ 10,000.00 for all the series of “forced” meetings
with the Bank and the bankruptcy.

At additional expense, the Shiells then had to pay off the mortgage on the factory (also with the
Bank of Montreal) in order to stop the loss of everything they had invested. The bank obviously
had not expected this as they planned to take this property, as sole secured creditor, and make a
windfall profit from its sale. This is the most probable reason the Bank of Montreal wanted to
force the closure of Cabi-Fab, Inc. It was also at this time that the bank became increasingly hostile
to the Shiells.

The bank then purposely delayed returning the mortgage release after the payment, in order to
deliberately cause the American investors more losses. This delay accorded several suppliers
ample time to file seizures before judgement, causing additional damages to the Shiells and their
companies.

The Shiells again had to fund payment to Adessky to have these seizures stopped or lose their U.S.
investments.

Although Cabi-Fab, Inc. had equity in the building, the bank refused to consider it in the line of
credit. This had been simply an excuse for under-funding the factory, nothing more.
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The Bank of Montreal had receivable insurance on Cabi-Fab’s receivables through Export
Development Corp., which should have paid off the loans, leaving no exposure for the investors
and guarantors.

For some reason unknown to the Shiells, the insurance supposedly only paid part of
what it should have, but the Bank refused to confirm any details of the insurance
payments or any other payments from the bankruptcy.

Manon Hebert Shiell, a French Canadian and the wife of William Shiell V as well as another
investor in Cabi-Fab, was appointed as an inspector in the Cabi-Fab bankruptcy.

She sent a letter to Litwin asking that he investigate the frozen bank accounts of
Cabi-Fab as the Bank of Montreal had apparently not credited these funds to the
amount they claimed was owed by Cabi-Fab to the Bank. Mr. Litwin refused to
respond to this letter, and later in the BPIC bankruptcy, claimed he knew nothing
about this complaint. (Violation of NAFTA chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104,
1105, 1109, 1110)

Once the Shiells had clear title to the Cabi-Fab property, and the bank owned the inventory and
equipment, the Bank of Montreal verbally, through its representative, agreed not to sue BPIC on
loan guarantees, if the Shiells would let them keep the Cabi-Fab inventory and equipment that
belonged to the bank now at the factory until they could hold an auction.

The Shiells agreed to this in the spirit of good faith, never expecting that this sale would take more
than five months.

This delayed the Shiells’ sale of the building and caused the Shiells to have to reduce the sale price
of the building to the neighboring factory that was buying it. Another act by the Bank of Montreal
to deliberately damage the Shiells! (Violation of NAFTA chapter 11, article 1109)

The Shiells once again insisted Adessky sue the Bank of Montreal for unfair trade practices, but he
again ignored them.

The Shiells have since been informed by their current attorneys that almost no
attorneys in Canada will sue the “BIG SIX” banks, as these banks spread their work
out among all the Canadian attorneys, as long as those attorneys are not in litigation
with them.

Adessky, instead of suing the Bank of Montreal, informed the Shiells that they should instead just
start a new factory and obtain grant and special loan money for new job development from
Investment Quebec.

The Shiells again invested additional U.S. funds to pay Addesky and Cecil April to prepare
business plans and cash flow statements for this new factory, and to attend meetings with
investment Quebec,
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After several months, the Shiells had a letter of commitment and upon this agreement of funding
had rented a building, ordered some equipment and purchased a truck. As well, they bought a truck
to be used to deliver to the U.S.

Just as they were interviewing prospective employees for the new factory, the Shiells got another
letter from Investment Quebec saying they were rescinding their offer because of the negative
references they received from the Bank of Montreal. The Bank of Montreal again was purposely
damaging the Shiells by not allowing them to even start a new factory to take the place of Cabi-
Fab, Inc. in order to preserve their U.S. customers. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

Janet Shiell once again demanded Adessky sue the Bank, but as usual he ignored his mandate and
deliberately stalled doing anything, despite repeated written demands that he act.

He sat on this mandate until the Bank of Montreal “out of the blue” sued BPIC as a guarantor in
2001.

Two other owners of the factory, who were Canadian-born and owned a total of about 50% of the
stock, were also guarantors of the loan.

The Bank of Montreal did not sue either of them, but singled the Shiells’ company
out, as the bank knew this company was funded by one of the Shiells’ American
companies The bank had sent a demand letter to the other investors, but the amount
the bank claimed against them was less than half the amount they claimed in the
bankruptcy against BPIC and its American investors a few weeks later. (Violation of
NAFTA Chapter 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

The suit against BPIC by the Bank of Montreal was for $ 93,000.00 and claimed compounded
interest, even during the bankruptcy protection period, and legal expenses never rewarded by any
court, but never gave any proof of actual expenses or details and showed no credit for the funds the
bank had seized in the account, or for some of the funds recouped from the bankruptcy and
payments to the estate by government agencies that were due.

Ken Adessky agreed to answer the suit and file a counter claim immediately for damages due to
the unfair trade practices of the bank. He also agreed to demand the bank provide proof of the
amounts they were claiming, disclose the use of the funds in the bank accounts, and back up all
amounts they were claiming were unpaid.

Adessky was well aware that this bank was discriminating against the Shiells and their companies
as U.S. investors, because he was handling the Shiells’ complaint against Midland 2000, and had
attended that bankruptcy meeting with the Bank of Montreal. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11,
articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

The Shiells had agreed to have one of their companies act as an agent for this new factory out of
desperation when the Bank of Montreal caused the failure of Cabi-Fab and stopped the Shiells
from opening their own factory.

The Bank of Montreal was also funding Midland 2000 and had sent a letter asking the Shiells to
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send a copy of their agency agreement to their branch manager in St. Leonard, Quebec. (Mrs.
Malacundro).

The Bank of Montreal was, therefore, fully aware that Midland 2000 was using one of the Shiells’
companies as an agent as they had requested a copy of that agency agreement prior to funding this
factory.

This contract was essentially the same as the Crotone and Cabi-Fab U.S. agency contracts.
The principal of the factory, Elie Khoury, was a Canadian of Lebanese birth.

Interestingly, the bank had accorded this new factory, that was totally undercapitalized and did not
even own the building they were operating in as Cabi-Fab did, more favorable exchange rates as
well as ninety (90%) financing of all their receivables, instead of eighty per cent (80%) of part of
the receivables as they limited Cabi-Fab to in their loan agreements. (Violation of NAFTA
Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

This again was blatant discrimination against the American investors of BPIC who had invested in
Cabi-Fab, Inc. at the urging of the Bank of Montreal.

Soon after Midland began making products for the Shiells” U.S. companies, the Shiells realized
that Midland was, like Crotone, making sub-standard U.S. government HUD products, selling
direct to U.S. customers and agents, and failing to pay commissions on a large project in Hawaii.

The Shiells refused to pay invoices on projects that were incomplete, contained inferior and
unacceptable products, or had warranty issues until these issues were rectified.

As well the Shiells demanded that all sales to their Hawaiian customers and agent be disclosed,
and that commissions due on these sales be paid or credited to their account.

Shortly thereafter, the Shiells were in the offices of BPIC in Montreal (at 3814 St. Denis street in
the downtown area of the city) at lunchtime. All of the staff, except William Shiell IV, Janet
Shiell, one accountant and an estimator working on another floor of the building, had gone to
lunch. About 12:15, two Arabic looking men came in the front door and walked through the
reception office into the office of William Shiell IV. When asked what they wanted, one presented
a Midland receivable listing and demanded payment from the Shiells, claiming it was “his money.”
The Shiells demanded proof of this and their relationship to Midland, but got no answer. Janet
Shiell again asked them for documentation of their claim of ownership of these receivables, as she
already knew this could not be true as the Bank of Montreal was financing this company. This
person then got abusive and William Shiell told him to get out. He rose from his desk to “escort”
this man and his accomplice off the premises. Once they were in the hall, this man suddenly
kicked William Shiell in the face and attacked him. William, who is called “Bubba” is 6'1" tall and
weighs 250 lbs., but the attacker was twenty (20) years his junior and 6'3" tall. William did
everything he could to defend himself, and knocked the offender into the staircase banister.

Janet Shiell now screamed to the other two employees, who were now hiding, to call the police.
She then proceeded to the front door to lock it until the police could arrive and apprehend these
criminals. Before she could lock it, she was kicked in the back, punched in the face and violently
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thrown to the floor, causing injuries to her back as well as concussion. William Shiell IV’s face
had been cut and badly bruised by his attacker, but William had gotten a couple of good punches
in too and the offender was bleeding profusely. As he ran out the front door over the prone Janet
Shiell, William hit him over the head with one of the sample cabinets in the front office. He and
his accomplice made good their escape after they were chased by a neighbor to the subway station
and ran inside.

The Montreal police did not arrive for fifteen (15 ) minutes. Although the Shiells later looked
through police mug shot books and thought they had identified one of the perpetrators, they were
told this individual was “dead.” They thought it odd that his picture would still be included if he
was dead. They had the “beeper” and sunglasses as well of the prime assailant, but the police said
they could get no information on the beeper, that there were no readable fingerprints and that the
DNA tests from the blood on the crime scene did not match any of their files. Oddly, the French
detective that had originally handled the file was suddenly replaced by an Arabic looking
individual whose name sounded middle-eastern. Even more odd was that this new Montreal
policeman then told the Shiells they had nothing to worry about, and that these people would never
bother us again! They never did. Question: How could this Montreal policeman know they would
never bother us again? (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

About the same time (2001) as the Midland bankruptcy and the time the Bank of Montreal was
suing BPIC, BPIC filed a suit in Montreal against Cuisine Crotone who had breached almost every
clause of their exclusive U.S. contract with BPIC.

These breaches included selling directly to the customers of BPIC and their U.S. agents against the
terms of the exclusive contract, failing to report these sales, failing to pay commissions and
overages or hold them in trust, manufacturing sub-standard cabinetry for U.S. HUD projects,
maliciously damaging their agent’s reputation, failing to honor warranties, failing to reimburse
their agents for repairs and warranty work done on behalf of Crotone, failing to provide sales tools
and literature and virtually every other article in the exclusive agreement.

Crotone was able to steal BPIC and their agent’s customers, as well as many of the agents
themselves, by offering to sell factory direct to these agents and customers, against the terms of
their contract, at a lower price than BPIUS and BPIC were charged for the same products.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

Crotone continued to defraud BPIUS and BPIC by hiding these direct sales and refusing to pay the
ten to twelve and eight-tenths per cent (10 to 12.8%) commissions plus all overages to BPIC as
required per the exclusive contract. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, article 1109)

BPIC had, naturally, been unable to repay the money it had borrowed from BPIUS, or pay
commissions owed because Crotone had failed to pay BPIC, and had instead purloined all BPIC’s
and BPIUS’ customers.

In March 2001, BPIUS filed a multi-million dollar suit against Crotone in Louisiana for unfair
trade practices and damages as a result of Crotone’s breach of the BPIC contract and the BPIUS
contract as sub-agent to BPIC. (Attorneys: Robert and Doug Redfearn of Simon, Peregrine, Smith,
Redfearn in New Orleans, U.S. District Court, Eastern District of Louisiana, Section “S”, No. 02-
1152)
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The BPIC/ Crotone agency contract specifically named BPIUS as a sub-agent.

Crotone’s deliberate breach of this contract caused BPIC to breach its U.S. sub-agency contract
with BPIUS.

In retaliation to this U.S. suit, Crotone then sued BPIUS. in Canada claiming only a handful of
unpaid invoices (appx. $ 40,000.00 only), which in fact were invoices not owed due to the
damages caused on the projects of BPIUS.

This was the last suit of the three (3) BPIUS - BPIC - Crotone suits to be filed.

BPIUS complained to the court that it had already sued Crotone in Louisiana, and
that it was not subject to the Canadian court’s jurisdiction as it had no offices or
assets in Canada. Cerrelli of Crotone filed a totally false affidavit before the Quebec
court in Montreal swearing that BPIC and BPIUS were the same parties, that BPIUS
had an office in Montreal, and that his suit had actually preceded BPIUS’s suit. He
also swore in this affidavit that the suits were “different” and the invoices he was
suing on were not related to BPIUS’s U.S. suit, when in actuality all of these invoices
were related directly to some of the damages Crotone was being sued for in
Louisiana, and that lawsuit claimed an offset against these same invoices. Cerrelli’s
affidavit was obviously perjured, but the court kept the case in Canada open and the
Shiells were again forced to invest and waste more money in Canada to defend their
U.S. company’s interests! (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104,
1105, 1109)

The Shiells heard no more about the earlier Bank of Montreal suit for many months until Mr.
Adessky advised that it would be best for another attorney to take the file, as he would be required
to be a witness to all the wrongs he had seen done by the bank to Cabi-Fab and their investors.

The same attorney, Francois Legare, handling the Crotone suit in Canada by BPIC, took over the
file, but then advised the Shiells that it was too late to amend it or file a new suit.

What Adessky actually did, according to Legare who was duped into accepting the case by
Adessky (Francois Legare), was to file a worthless defense and the wrong kind of counterclaim.

As the Shiells were left with little choice, Legare recommended BPIC settle for $ 30,000.00 to be
paid over thirty (30) months starting November 2002.

This settlement included all capital, interest and fees per the Cabi-Fab loan guarantees.

The Shiells only agreed as it had been advised that due to Adessky’s purposely poor and
inadequate defense, they would probably lose and fees and costs could run up to $ 50,000.00.

At this same time, BPIC was being unjustly sued by Cabi-Fab’s suppliers who got little from the
bankruptcy as they were unsecured. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103,
1104, 1105)



161.

162.

163.

164.

165.

166.

167.

168.

169.

170.

171.

172.

173.

174.

Adessky again was the attorney, and won one of the suits but lost the other.

The Shiells insisted he appeal the lost case as Cabi-Fab, Inc. and BPIC were two completely
different corporations, but he stalled them to set them up for the bankruptcy.

Adessky instead strongly recommended in November 2002 that the Shiells file for bankruptcy
protection for BPIC.

Adessky convinced the Shiells that they were protected by the securities he said he had filed and
that they would have control of BPIC as the only secured creditors. (Violation of NAFTA
Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105)

The Shiells reminded Adessky of the huge lawsuit against Crotone by BPIC, and insisted they did
not want to file as he recommended.

Adessky insisted they were protected and finally convinced them to file an “intent” to make a
proposal to the creditors.

Important: The only sizable creditors, other than the Shiells’ U.S. companies and the Shiells
themselves, were actually litigious creditors, like the Bank of Montreal and Dearborn, LLC, who
should not have been allowed to vote in the bankruptcy, and one sub-agent that worked with
BPIUS and BPIC, George Hunter, also an American.

Mr. Hunter had advised the Shiells he would support BPIC in the bankruptcy hearing.

The court gave BPIC six (6) months to make a proposal to its creditors during which time it was
protected from any seizures or suits.

During this period the Bank of Montreal tried to sue BPIC regarding the settiement
but this attempt was too late as the notice of intent had already been filed ! One
payment of $ 1,000.00 had been made on the Bank of Montreal settlement before the
protection period started in December 2002. The court would not hear this suit
because of the filing in the bankruptcy court.

At this same time, Cerrelli of Crotone was stalling continuing his discovery in Canada or turning
over sales records per the terms of the U.S. contract.

In late December 2002, Legare finally obtained a court order for the Crotone sales records.

While he was in court, an attorney for the Bank of Montreal showed up and asked
for a copy of the file. That attorney commented about what a strong case it appeared
to be, and later apparently used the strength of the case as the basis for the deal that
would falsely force BPIC into bankruptcy in June 2003. (Violations of NAFTA
Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Crotone continuously stalled until May 2003 to produce the sales records BPIC and BPIUS needed
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to prove their court cases in the U.S. and Canada. Simultaneously, the BPIUS lawsuit was
proceeding in U.S. District court in New Orleans.

After months of written discovery and motions that cost the Shiells many, many thousand of more
wasted dollars, Crotone’s attorney suddenly claimed “forum non conveniens” and jurisdictional
issues in the U.S. District Court case in Louisiana.

BPIUS argued that Crotone had already been involved in a lawsuit with one of the Shiells’
companies, Fleur de Lys Trading, and Crotone had lost by default in 2001. It also argued that it
could not possibly get all of its U.S. witnesses (over 100), if any, to go to Canada for a trial as it
could not force U.S. citizens and companies with a Canadian subpoena, and that Crotone on the
other hand only had its employees, all of whom it could control.

Continual perjury occurred when Cerrelli of Crotone filed false affidavits in the
Louisiana courts again claiming that his suits preceded BPIUS’ suit. Most
importantly, now Cerrelli claimed all these suits in the U.S. and Canada were THE
SAME, not different, as he had previously attested to in an affidavit filed with the
Canadian court in order to keep the Crotone BPIUS suit alive in Canada. Cerrelli
lied again and swore that the case in Canada was well developed, although he was, at
the same time, refusing to continue his discovery. Then he lied again and said he and
Crotone were fully amenable to continuing the case in Canada, when he actually had
no intention of allowing BPIUS to continue its case in Canada. (See # 184)

Judge Lemmon of the U.S. District Court in Louisiana, unbelievably and against all reason, bought
these lies lock, stock and barrel, despite the fact that it was repeatedly pointed out that none of this
was true and that we could prove it, she dismissed the BPIUS on forum non conveniens.

BPIUS tried to appeal but this failed as well in U.S. Appeals Court which was apparently not the
slightest bit interested in protecting U.S. citizens whatsoever!.

BPIUS now had no choice but to actually now amend the case in Canada to include
BPIUS.” damages and losses never originally part of the BPIUS Canadian cross-
claim filed in response to Crotone’s suit against BPIUS, which suit was an “on
account” suit only for a few invoices. Now this cross claim had to include all the
claims and damages of the unfair trade practices and damage suit that had been
included only in the U.S. Louisiana suit previously.

While Cerrelli was stalling returning to discovery in Canada in early 2003, his attorneys had time
to meet with the bankruptcy syndic, Gerald Litwin and offer him money to force the bankruptcy.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Prior to their settlement offer to Litwin, Crotone had offered BPIC one hundred and fifty thousand
dollars ($150,000.00) to settle the BPIC law suit that was about to be amended to ten million
dollars ($10,000,000.00), given the records produced by court order proving all the deliberately
hidden U.S. sales. These sales amounted to more than thirty million dollars ($30,000,000.00) U.S.
even though sales had only been reported until September of 2002. These records fell short of the
court order requiring all sales be produced through December 2002.



183.

184.

185.

186.

187.

188.

189.

190.

191.

192,

193.

194,

195.

BPIC and the Shiells naturally refused this settlement offer as totally inadequate.

Crotone’s attorneys then wrote a letter to Litwin asking him to force BPIC into
bankruptcy. It was essential that Crotone force BPIC into bankruptcy in order to
bring an end to the exclusive contract that could force Crotone to stop selling to all
the U.S. customers it had sold to since the signing of that contract in 1996. (Violation
of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Crotone was unwilling to pay the commissions and overages as agreed in the contract, but wanted
to “steal” all the U.S. customers and sub-agents and sell direct to defraud BPIC and its U.S.
investors, the Shiells and BPIUS, Kitchens International, Inc., Fleur de Lys Fine Cabinetry, Inc.,
Fleur de Lys Trading Co., Inc., and George Hunter. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

When BPIC refused to sign a new contract with Crotone in 2001, which would have allowed
Crotone to sell openly in the U.S. without paying commissions to BPIC, the only way Crotone
could end the still valid original agency contract was to put an end to BPIC through a bankruptcy
forced by a false claim by the Bank of Montreal. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The sole purpose of this forced bankruptcy was to defraud BPIC and its U.S. investors and agents
of the commissions and overages they had earned, and would earn in the future per the contract.

In June, BPIC’s six months grace period to hold a meeting of its creditors and make a proposal
was expiring, but Crotone had still refused to return to discovery in Canada.

BPIC could not yet demand a summary judgement as they had to amend the lawsuit to ten million
dollars ($ 10,000,000.00) and complete discovery.

BPIC had no choice but to schedule the creditors’ meeting with the syndic in June 2003.

To the Shiells’ surprise their attorney Adessky, whose brainchild this bankruptcy protection was,
did not even show up for the meeting.

While waiting for the meeting to begin, Janet Shiell and her son witnessed the Bank of Montreal’s
attorneys and Crotone’s attorneys entering a side room for a private meeting.

Once the creditors’ meeting was called, they emerged separately and purposefully sat on opposite
sides of the room this meeting was held in.

No one else was present save Janet, her son William Shiell V, the syndic and the superintendent of
bankruptcy.

Janet Shiell had filed millions of dollars in claims for her U.S. companies, as well as for unpaid
rents owed to the Shiells (which should have been priority claims), and unpaid salaries for the two
years she and her family had worked for BPIC to sell Crotone’s products in the U.S.
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Two of BPIC’s attorneys had filed small claims but were not present.

The syndic appeared, but it was not the person Janet Shiell had engaged , met with and paid, but
his partner whom she did not know.

This partner, Noubar Boyadjian, was the same person she had seen at the Midland bankruptcy.

Neither this syndic nor the bank had done anything to collect any of the debts or guarantees from
Midland in their bankruptcy, but had walked away from the bankruptcy.

Now, without any explanation of what was happening and without giving the Shiells
an opportunity to call their attorney and find out where he was, this syndic quickly
called for a vote. Janet Shiell immediately asked to be shown the votes but was not
allowed to see them. The Bank’s attorney, who had asked to be an inspector, instead
took the paperwork and votes from the superintendent, refusing to allow Janet Shiell
to see them as he was “checking them”. Despite the objections of Janet Shiell, as a
representative of the mass of the real creditors, the Bank was allowed to be named an
inspector even though the Syndic and the Bankruptcy superintendent knew (and
were again informed of at that time), of the litigious and hostile relationship between

the Bank of Montreal and the Shiells and their companies.

The superintendent then informed Janet Shiell that none of her companies could vote
in the bankruptcy because they were “related”, and that the Bank of Montreal was
forcing BPIC into bankruptcy with a claim of one-hundred eighty-eight thousand
dollars ($ 188,000.00) based on a judgement they said they had been awarded against
BPIC

Janet Shiell insisted there was no judgement and asked to see the documents of
proof. She was told by Superintendent Lavallee that the bank did not have to
produce proof of this judgement. She informed the superintendent she had proof of a
settlement, which disproved any possible claim of over the balance due per the
settlement, twenty-nine thousand dollars ($ 29,000.00). The superintendent replied
she would have to prove there was no judgement, and that if she could do so he
would reverse the bankruptcy. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103,
1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The meeting was adjourned quickly as the superintendent was said to be in pain from a root canal.

The syndic, Boyadjian, was addressed by the Bank’s attorney as he departed, who
smiled and said “you’re going to be a rich man now”. When Janet Shiell asked what
that remark was about, Boyadjian said he had “no idea”.

The Shiells now firmly believe it was because the Bank of Montreal and Boyadjian had already
made the deal with Crotone for the one-hundred thousand dollar ($ 100,000.00) settlement, which
funds this syndic/ trustee would control.
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That amount in the Shiells’ minds hardly constitutes “richness”.

When Crotone had offered the Shiells $ 150,000.00, Crotone’s lawyer, Greenberg,
had suggested a “cash deal” as well.

The Shiells had informed Greenberg that they were not interested in cash as all company funds
went through their companies’ bank accounts.

We believe there is something more to this than a mere one-hundred thousand dollars
($ 100,000.00) settlement, especially as we ourselves had been offered more than this in cash.

As to the Bank’s claim that they had a judgement, Janet Shiell had Francois Legare
check the courts. There was no judgement by the Bank of Montreal against BPIC.
Legare gave this information to the Syndic who said it was now too late as the
superintendent had accepted the claim of the bank. At the same time, however, he
actually reversed the superintendent’s acceptance of the Shiell related claims, and
now said there was “no proof” of the relationship between the Shiells’ U.S.
companies and BPIC . (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105,
1109, 1110)

Attached to these claims were checks from the Shiell’s U.S. companies that had been
deposited into the account of BPIC, proving the investments and loans.

The decision that there was no “relationship” was in direct contradiction to the
disallowance to vote “as related companies” imposed on the largest creditors in the
BPIC bankruptcy, the Shiells’ companies who had funded BPIC and their legal
battles against Crotone.

Litwin also said there was no lease attached to the unpaid rent claim of the Shiells
although the lease had been attached.

Litwin was rejecting valid documentation on the Shiells personal claims and the
claims of their U.S. companies, while allowing the Bank of Montreal’s claim to go
unquestioned even though NO documentation of any kind was attached to that
claim. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Although the Shiells, their companies and BPIC’s other U.S. agent, George Hunter’s
claims made up more than ninety per cent (90%) of the claims filed, Litwin allowed
the Bank of Montreal to control this bankruptcy with a false and fraudulent claim,
that even at its exaggerated amount, was less than 5% of the total claims in the
bankruptcy, and allowed this same party to exclude all the other creditors by turning
down their claims without valid cause. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)
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Litwin even claimed that one of the Shiells’ lawyers, Francois Legare, who said he
had filed a claim and voted ON TIME, had not sent his claim in on time, so Litwin
had not counted that claim or “yes” vote.

Instead, he allowed a litigious claim, from a customer of BPIC and Cabi-Fab, who
was a party to an ongoing Canadian suit with BPIC and actually had failed to pay
for over $ 100,000.00 in cabinets sent to Chicago, to file a claim.

The proxy of this litigious creditor had been “procured” from Chicago by the Bank
of Montreal in order to bolster enough “money” claims against BPIC. to force the
bankruptcy. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The Bank’s attorney actually represented Dearborn in the meeting and voted their
proxy against BPIC even though Dearborn was at the time of the bankruptcy still in
open litigation with BPIC in Canada and was refusing to return to discovery.

The inspector, the Bank of Montreal, the syndic and the superintendent were all
advised of this by Janet Shiell and agreed not to count this claim at the hearing, but
then refused to show Janet Shiell the vote and count. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11,
articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Why would the Bank of Montreal have sought the proxy for a claim by Dearborn
when they knew that Dearborn had been a customer of Cabi-Fab’s and had failed to
pay for products received and used on their project in Chicago? They had to have an
ulterior motive in singling out this debtor of Cabi-Fab, Inc. and BPIC. The
chronically delinquent receivable of Dearborn LLC was on every monthly receivable
report of Cabi-Fab sent to the Bank of Montreal from 1998 until the bank forced
Cabi-Fab into bankruptcy, so the Bank of Montreal can hardly claim they did not
know who Dearborn was and that their claim was false.

It was only months later that the Shiells’ attorney, Francois Legare, was able to get a
copy of the vote count. The vote count still showed the litigious and disputed claim of
both the Bank of Montreal and Dearborn, but no vote from Legare.

The Bank of Montreal could not include Legare’s vote or allow any of the Shiells
companies to vote in order to give the bank the minimum amount of votes and the
dollar amounts it needed to force the bankruptcy.

At the same time, the other BPIC U.S. sub-agent’s claim (George Hunter) was
rejected when the syndic falsely claimed he was related as well. This claim had to be
challenged, because even Hunter’s original understated claim in the bankruptcy, had
it been converted at the right exchange rate, would have outvoted the Bank of

Montreal and resulted in an acceptance of the proposal instead of bankruptcy.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)
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The syndic was also advised that because of the late production of documents by
Crotone, BPIUS and Hunter had only been able to estimate the commissions owed
them in their original bankruptcy claims.

They revised these claims in August but the syndic refused to either correct the
amount of Mr. Hunter’s original claim or accept the amended claims, either of which
would have reversed the bankruptcy. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Mr. Hunter is an ex-officer and decorated 83 year-old veteran who lives in
Pennsylvania. He previously worked for Tripac, one of the largest U.S. cabinet
suppliers for many years, as well as being a school teacher. He has worked under
sub-agency contracts with BPIC, BPIUS and Kitchens International, Inc. since 1994,
and still works as an agent for one of the Shiells’ U.S. companies.

Despite proof given of the actual sales via affidavits of the factory (by Cerrelli of
Crotone), a copy of Hunter’s contract and canceled commission checks from BPIC,
as well as BPIC’s agreement that Hunter would have been owed these commissions if
Crotone had paid, the bank of Montreal, as inspector persisted in ignoring his claim.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Litwin’s attorney, Lewis Cytrynbaum, instead deliberately misled the courts to
believe Mr. Hunter is nothing but a “friend” of the Shiells whom they control, and
that Mr. Hunter was lying about being BPIC’s agent when nothing could be further
from the truth. He has continually reminded the courts and the judges, time and
time again, that the Shiells were “Americans” to damage our cases, as he is aware of
the common Canadian view of Americans and their law system as overly litigious.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The Bank of Montreal is openly hostile to the Shiells and their companies and
involved in litigation with them, and should never have been allowed to act as an
inspector in this bankruptcy much less act as the sole inspector.

In that capacity, the bank is continuously and purposely damaging the Shiells and
their companies.

The Bank of Montreal should never have been able to accept their own false and
contested claim to force this bankruptcy without any proof of this claim whatsoever,
and against the contestations of the mass of the creditors.

The Shiells complained to the syndic and Industry Canada continuously and
demanded they review the Bank’s false claim, but got no response to this demand.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)
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The Shiells have even filed new revised claims in the bankruptcy in 2007 to include
BPIC’s credit cards they had to pay off for over nine thousand dollars ($9,000.00)
and a one hundred thousand dollar ($ 100,000.00) wire transfer from BPIUS to
BPIC sent as an initial investment. Although the actual documents proving these
transactions were attached, the syndic once again has simply ignored the claims.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The syndic wrote in one of the few responses Janet Shiell ever received to her
complaints, in 2003, that it was not he but the Bank of Montreal who had turned
down all the claims.

He also stated in this letter that because the Bank of Montreal had turned down the
other creditors claims, the Bank would have to pay any and all legal costs for the
syndic to defend himself.

He has since then, contrary to his letter to Janet Shiell, allowed his attorney
Cytrynbaum to claim that he is not being paid by the Bank, but by the estate. This is
in direct contradiction of the previous letter as well as in opposition to bankruptcy
law which states that any creditor who insists another creditors claims be turned
down must pay the syndic’s legal fees. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Additionally, Mr. Cytrynbaum had caused the Shiells U.S. companies and George
Hunter to be forced to deposit funds in the Canadian courts and has since seized or is
attempting to seize these funds wrongly. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102,
1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Janet Shiell wrote to Industry Canada in October 2003, as they are the government
watch-dog in bankruptcies.

They replied that something certainly looked wrong, and said that the
superintendent was sure this was a misunderstanding.

The superintendent offered to meet with Janet Shiell and the syndic as soon as
Litwin returned from his vacation home in Boca Raton, Florida in January 2004,

Instead of meeting with the Shiells, Litwin placed a conference call from his
FLORIDA residence in Boca Raton, with his attorney, Lewis Cytrynbaum, in
Montreal also on the line.

Litwin now said he was not going to meet with the Shiells or the superintendent, but
was going to court when he returned to find out what to do with a hostile inspector

who would not review the claims.

What Litwin actually did instead was to motion the court to allow him to accept a
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mere one hundred thousand dollars ($ 100,000.00) from Cuisine Crotone as payment
in full to settle the BPIC ten million dollar ($10,000,000.00) Canadian lawsuit against
Crotone. (This is only one per cent (1%) of the total claim in the lawsuit !)

The Shiells and Hunter tried to stop the court from allowing the acceptance of this
absurd offer but could not, as of all their claims had been turned down wrongly and
they were now informed that they had no voice in the bankruptcy.

The offer of settlement presented to the court by Crotone’s lawyers asked not only
for a release on the BPIC $10 million lawsuit in Canada, but also asked for a
cancellation of the exclusive contract, as well as a release in all the other lawsuits and
claims the Shiells and their U.S. companies had or could have against Crotone.

Judge Gascon, thankfully in one of the few decisions that favored the “Americans” at
all, did not allow this blanket release of any and all claims by the Shiells and their
U.S. and Canadian companies. He, nonetheless, caused enormous damage to the
Shiells and their U.S. companies when he allowed the syndic to accept a settlement
for only one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00), which settlement Litwin had
falsely claimed this was for the benefit of the “mass” of the creditors. There was no
mass of creditors as the bank had now turned down all the claims except their own.

The syndic has even refused to account for the one hundred thousand dollars

($ 100,000.00), and is assisting the bank in thwarting the Shiells and George Hunter’s
attempts to have a judge review their claims. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The Shiells, their companies and George Hunter went to court again in 2005 with a new attorney
(Robins) to have their claims reviewed by the court.

They were again discriminated against as Americans and required to deposit eleven
thousand dollars ($ 11,000.00) just to get into court to have their U.S. companies’
and agent’s claims reviewed BECAUSE THEY WERE U.S. CORPORATIONS.

As U.S. investors of BPIUS Canada, the Shiells’ U.S. companies should not have been
forced to put up any funds, as the Canadian company owned by the Shiells,
Broussard Shiell Holdings, was not required to do so when they filed a claim.
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

This is more proof that American investors are being openly discriminated against,
and this is hardly equal treatment as agreed by the Canadian Government under
NAFTA.

Additional U.S. funds had to be invested to pay Robins’ firm, Kounadis, Perrault, before they
would accept the Shiells’ case.

This firm kept the § 20,000.00 the Shiells had been forced to pay to the firm “in trust”.
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Robins then went into court, and reduced the Shiells” claims by millions of dollars without their
permission, and then claimed the Shiells had agreed to this even though all the letters of direction,
documentation and instructions to Robins submitted to the court completely proved otherwise.

Unbelievably, he reduced the Shiell’s claims by actually allowing opposing counsel who
represented Litwin (the syndic), Lewis Cytrynbaum, to dictate reductions in French, from the
opposite side of the judge’s chambers from where Janet Shiell and her attorney were seated..
(Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Somehow, Robins and Cytrynbaum also managed to reduce Hunter’s claim when he wasn’t even
present in court because his wife was dying.

In desperation, the Shiells contacted the bar for attorney referrals, but none of them would take a
case against another lawyer. Finally, they were referred by one of the lawyers they met with to
another attorney to take over the file, Jean Lozeau, and had to spend and invest many thousands of
dollars more, he advised them that BPIUS had no choice but to file a disavowal against Robins.

The Shiells also informed Lozeau that they wanted to sue Ken Adessky for failing to file needed
securities and the Bank of Montreal for unfair trade practices and damages, in relation to the entire
conspiracy against them and their American companies by the Bank, Syndic, Crotone and the
attorneys representing them.

Although Lozeau’s firm charged the Shiells and their U.S. companies tens of thousands of dollars,
they failed to file suit against the bank or charge the bank with fraud as the Shiells had requested.

Although Lozeau filed the disavowal against Robins, he purposely and against all reason never
questioned Robins, either through a discovery or in court, as to why he had reduced the claims
when there was neither a benefit to reducing the claims or a reason to reduce them given the
affidavit which proved the claims were valid in full.

Robins had even purposely withheld this affidavit of Crotone sales as well as the Crotone/ BPIC
and BPIUS sales agency contracts as evidence at the pre-trial hearing, although this would have
been all the evidence the Shiells should have needed.

Robins’ rationale for this action was that he agreed with the syndic’s and bank’s lawyers that
BPIUS would have to bring every U.S. customer into the bankruptcy court to prove commissions
owed to BPIUS, even though this was an impossibility as they could not force U.S. companies to
come to Canada to testify on their behalf. Further, this was totally unnecessary given Crotone had
admitted the sales in an affidavit ,and there was a contract still in force covering these exact sales.

Of course this is not what Robins told the Shiells when he accepted the case before the pre-trial
conference, but what he actually did in the pre-trial conference.

This firm had now joined the conspirators in purposely damaging the Shiells by destroying their
claims and keeping them out of court so they could not reverse the bankruptcy.

When Lozeau failed to ask Robins any pertinent questions about the reduction of the claims, Judge
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Gascon questioned him himself, asking if Robins was sure Janet Shiell understood he was
reducing the claims. Robins hesitated and the judge then explained this had to be a yes or no
answer. Robins finally boldfaced lied to the judge and said yes.

Despite all the evidence to the opposite presented in documents at the trial by Janet Shiell, the
judge incredulously said he believed Robins when he finally answered that Janet Shiell had agreed
to reduce the claims, even though there was absolutely no possible benefit or reason for such a
reduction, and no proof that Janet Shiell had ever agreed to the reductions.

Incredulously, Judge Gascon ruled, in the true spirit of Canadian anti-Americanism, that he was
sure Janet Shiell understood everything at the pre-trial conference (when four lawyers were
speaking in French). He made this judgement in spite of the fact he knows Janet Shiell is actually
an American Anglophone even though she has an Acadian French maiden name.

He actually said he believed Janet Shiell understood the reduction of the claims even though he
knew, because he had asked this question when Lozeau failed to, that it was the syndic’s attorney,
not Robins, who had dictated, in French legal terms, a reduction of the Shiells’ companies claims.

He amazingly came to this decision even though he had been finally presented with the evidence of
the sales contracts and sales affidavit, when Janet Shiell insisted Lozeau present these documents
deliberately not produced by Robins. These documents proved there would have been neither a
reason nor a benefit to reducing the claim, as the affidavit actually proved the claims’ original full
values were accurate.

Janet Shiell had no possible reason to scrutinize what another party’s attorney was dictating to the
court clerk in French. The pre-trial conference was held in a judge’s chambers, complete with a
table twelve feet wide and twenty feet long surrounded by dozens of chairs. Four lawyers were
scattered all about this table. It would have been impossible for Janet Shiell to know what
everyone was doing in this environment even had they all been speaking English.

She had asked her attorney, Jean Lozeau, to ask the court to allow all the attorneys and court
personnel to visit that room which was only a few doors down on the same floor to prove her
point.

Lozeau purposely refused to even bring this request to the judge’s attention.

Janet Shiell speaks and understands French at only the most rudimentary level. (The little French
she speaks or understands was learned at an American high school and WAS NOT Canadian
French.) The whole premise, that she understood everything these lawyers were doing in LEGAL
French terms, in is preposterous and absurd, as well as a violation of her rights in that she was not
allowed to disprove this ridiculous basis for a judgement against her.

She can prove she was terminated from the only job she ever had in Canada where she was
required to work in French because her understanding and command of the French language is
extremely poor. There are witnesses available to prove this as well as employment records.

The statements by Judge Gascon are deliberate unbounded discrimination against Janet Shiell as an
American. It should also be treated as a deliberate violation of her human rights for the judge to
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declare she speaks and understands French when she does not. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11,
articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

It is only too apparent that the courts and attorneys in Canada do not welcome Americans and their
cases against Canadian nationals in their courts, and will not hesitate to openly discriminate against
them to get them out of their courts.

Lozeau never used any of the information given him in the appeal, nor did he ever bring up the fact
that Janet Shiell does not speak French, and never signed any agreement or agreed to reduce any of
the Shiells or their companies’ claims.

Janet Shiell had again asked Lozeau to explain this to the court before the original trial ended, and
take them to the Judge’s chambers next door to see why the testimony of the attorneys could not be
true, but he purposely failed to do so.

Not only did the Shiells’ U.S. companies lose the case, we lost the appeal when Lozeau failed to
use any of this evidence to prove the judge’s errors. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

The Adessky suit was filed by Lozeau’s firm , Lozeau L’Africain, as well, but an associate of
Lozeau, Isabelle Dionne, handled this file instead.

It was only after the suit was filed, and we had spent considerable funds for her work
in the file to proceed, that she informed us we would now have to deposit (twenty-five
thousand dollars ($ 25,000.00) with the court just in order to keep our case from
being thrown out of the Canadian courts. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

She explained this was necessary because the biggest claim was by BPIUS and this
was a U.S. corporation.

This is yet another violation of the fair and equal treatment that is to be accorded to
U.S. investors under NAFTA, as no deposits were necessary for the claims of the
Shiell’s Canadian companies against Mr. Adessky.

Adessky was aware that BPIUS was an investor of BPIC and worked in Canada
under NAFTA. Lozeau was aware of this as well and should have contested this
deposit when the Shiells demanded he do so . (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles
1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

After this suit was filed and Adessky’s attorneys, Heenan Blakie, had proceeded with the discovery
of Janet Shiell, Lozeau’s firm merged with another Canadian law firm, and Isabelle Dion resigned
and took a position with a Canadian bank.

Lozeau refused to refund any of the fees paid, and wanted to charge the Shiells to start the case
over with the new firm. This would have been too costly as boxes and boxes of evidence had been
reviewed with Ms. Dion and she had attended the discovery. Another lawyer would take weeks to
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get to the level she was at in this file when she left.

Before she left the firm, Ms. Dion had warned the Shiells that Lozeau was going to try to talk her
into settling with the bank for almost nothing, and advised her that she would not do so if it were
her decision. Lozeau’s bankruptcy specialist, Jean Lauzon, also seemed to be directing them to
leave the firm for their own welfare as their fees were too costly. This seemed sound advice as
there had been two senior lawyers on the BPIC bankruptcy file for years now, yet almost nothing
had happened except for tens of thousands of dollars of invoicing being sent to the Shiells and
their firms. The Shiells still did not even have a court date for the pitiful remnants of their
butchered claims to be reviewed by the courts.

The Shiells therefore refused to continue the case with Lozeau’s new firm, and turned the case
over to a human rights attorney in Montreal named Julius Grey, who charged the Shiells another
five thousand dollars ($ 5,000.00) just to review the case.

Now Mr. Grey is requesting another fifteen thousand dollars, ($ 15,000.00) advance to continue,
but warns the Shiells they will very probably lose because the Canadian courts are never going to
believe the Shiells against a Canadian attorney. This seems inherent in the Canadian courts
because of the way the Canadian system works against individuals and in favor of the big banks
and businesses.

Mr. Grey is also requiring that the Shiells sign a document admitting their case is “weak” and they
expect to lose.

The Shiells had a young attorney, Tom Markakis, take over the bankruptcy file from Lozeau, but
still do not have a date for the claims of our American companies to be heard, and no one seems to
be able to explain why. This same attorney previously took over the amendment of the Crotone file
when we were forced to add the Louisiana lawsuit claims to it. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11,
articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

When we amended the cross claim we had made against Crotone in Canada, in
answer to their forty thousand dollar ($ 40,000.00) suit (which was the only suit
Crotone had even filed against either BPIC or BPIUS) to over ten million dollars,
Crotone’s lawyers suddenly recanted what Cerrelli had said in his original affidavit
in Canada (see # 148) to keep BPIUS in court in Canada.

Cerrelli now said that BPIUS and BPIC were NOT the same, that BPIUS was a
foreign corporation, and that BPIUS would have to deposit a minimum of
$ 78,000.00 is court for “possible” costs just to have their day in court.

This is yet another NAFTA violation against the treatment of a U.S. investor in Canada who is
supposed to receive the same treatment as a Canadian national or enterprise who would not have to
make such deposits in court. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105,
1109, 1110)

BPIUS does not now have the funds or the desire to make this deposit. BPIUS does not have the
money because of the stolen investments and unpaid commissions in Canada, as well as the
massive legal expenses it had funded trying to protect their loans and investments. Even if BPIUS
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had the money to deposit, the syndic’s lawyer, Cytrynbaum, intends to seize it for more costs he is
claiming in the bankruptcy file. These costs should have been paid to him by the Bank of Montreal
per bankruptcy law.

BPIUS now has no forum and no means to have their claims heard in Canada. BPIUS would
probably never be able to recover anything from Crotone in Canada anyway, as all the Canadian
assets, including U.S. receivables (against the terms of the BPIC Crotone contract) have been
assigned to Canadian banks.

BPIUS could recover funds due them in the U.S. as Crotone is still selling to our customers
including the New York City and Philadelphia Housing Authority contracts. With a U.S.
judgement, we could begin other litigation to seize these receivables.

BPIUS has recently filed a new suit in Louisiana and included all the new events from 2003 to
date, but Crotone’s attorneys are claiming “lis pendans” and “forum non conveniens” once again.

BPIUS should have been treated equally to Crotone in the court in Canada under NAFTA but has
been deliberately, willfully, purposely and maliciously discriminated against, and has been
repeatedly denied due process of law. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103,
1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

Several of our attorneys have told us, in confidence, that the Canadian judges are rejecting our
claims because they do not want “Americans” in their courts, and that we will never be treated
fairly in Canada. The Shiells’ and their companies’ previous Canadian court cases are proof of this,
as are all the “costs” our U.S. companies are being charged with in the cases after they were
discriminated against by the courts, the lawyers and even the government of Canada.

Attorney Lewis Cytrynbaum is claiming over one hundred thousand ($100,000.00) in legal fees he
claims are due him for his work in preventing the Shiells’ U.S. companies from having their claims
heard or reversing the bankruptcy. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104,
1105, 1109, 1110)

Canadian Bankruptcy laws clearly decree he must be paid by the Bank of Montreal because they,
as a creditor, insisted all the other creditors claims be rejected and, as such, are responsible for
ALL costs for the syndic’s defense on the rejection of these claims.

The Shiells had mentioned the NAFTA treaty repeatedly to each and every one of our attorneys,
but none of them seem to have had the interest or compunction to look into Canada’s
responsibilities under this treaty to protect U.S. investors in Canada.

We have heard nothing further of a complaint we filed with the RCMP in 2007 (Inspector Caron).
Inspector Caron informed the Shiells that he forwarded this complaint to Industry Canada, who is
supposedly the government watch-dog to assure bankruptcies are handled fairly. Industry Canada
has to date failed to respond. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105,
1109, 1110)

It is obvious beyond reasonable doubt that the Shiells and their U.S. companies will get no justice
in Canada. The U.S. District Court has also refused to hear the case on the basis of forum proved
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with perjured affidavits. To date, the Shiells have NO FORUM OR COURT in either Canada or
the U.S. willing that is willing to hear their case.

The Shiells’ attorneys in Canada have consistently, purposely, and willfully failed to copy them on
all pertinent documents regarding their cases, but have instead kept them totally in the dark
continuously.

The Shiells have lost millions of dollars in loss of revenue, their life savings, the equity in their
U.S. businesses that took them over 20 years to build and even their health as a result of this
conspiracy. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

They have further personally been required to labor for years, without pay, as well as to fund
subcontractors in the U.S., to design, modify, value-engineer, field measure, install, rebuild and
correct mis-manufactured cabinetry (as required by warranty but not performed by the Canadian
factories in breach of contracts) and provide project management to their customers, because of the
fraud perpetrated against them and their U.S. and Canadian companies in Canada. (Violation of
NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105, 1109, 1110)

This expense, as well as the fact that they have not been reimbursed for business expenses related
to this work, or for the excessive legal costs in Canada and the U.S. related to these cases, has been
a heavy burden for the Shiells and their companies.

The Shiells and their U.S. companies are now in debt, all because they were foolish enough to
“Invest in Canada” and believe such investments would be protected by the Canadian courts as
they should have been under NAFTA. Canada obviously does not play by the rules when it comes
to Americans or NAFTA. (Violation of NAFTA Chapter 11, articles 1102, 1103, 1104, 1105,
1109, 1110)

The Shiells, who are now elderly, have not only lost nine years of their lives and income that
would have been earned by their companies during this period, but have also suffered from the
physical attacks on them in Canada, as well as failing health because of the stress associated with
all of these events. This suffering is all a result of the fraud and discrimination purposefully
perpetrated against the Shiells and their companies by the Bank of Montreal and their co-
conspirators.

It is the Shiells’ position that this conspiracy was successful only because it was engineered
through fraud and perjury. The Shiells and their companies were defrauded and are continuing to
be defrauded. We are desperately seeking a forum of International Justice to expeditiously rectify
all the injustice we have suffered.

We respectfully request that each and every court document in the U.S. District Court, U.S. Court
of Appeals, Quebec Superior Court and Quebec Bankruptcy Court, including all exhibits,
transcripts, recordings and all other records, as well as all pertinent Bank of Montreal records and
documents, the Syndic Litwin, Boyadjian’s records and documents, Cuisine Crotone’s records and
documents, and any other related documents in the possession of agencies of the Canadian
government be obtained, without further delay, by subpoena and reviewed as proof of the
claims by the Shiells and their companies for their impending NAFTA complaint.



